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S&P

YXREIT
4.75 BBB- Baa3 - 51,312 51,351 0.02
04/27/21

CHINAM
Float BBB+ Baal - 39,445 39,371 0.02
07/16/21

HRINTH
3.625 BBB+ - - 63,401 63,586 0.03
11/22/21

BCLMHK 4

01/22/22 A- - A 12,530 12,571 0.01

CICCHK
3.375 BBB - BBB+ 47,067 47,232 0.02
05/03/22

CICCHK
Float BBB - BBB+ 80,349 80,247 0.04
05/03/22

CATIC 3.5

05/31/22 - - A- 47,082 47,208 0.02

HAOHUA
3.5 BBB - A- 94,314 94,441 0.04
07/19/22

CHIOLI
3.95 BBB+ Baal - 24,048 24,095 0.01
11/15/22

POLYRE
3.95 BBB- Baa3 BBB+ 196,209 197,493 0.09
02/05/23

HAOHUA
4.625 BBB - A- 40,706 40,779 0.02
03/14/23

PINGIN
4.375 - Baa2 - 12,164 12,219 0.01
09/10/23

YUEXIU
5.375 - Baa3 BBB- 23,725 23,781 0.01
10/19/23

VNKRLE
5.35 BBB Baa? - 50,043 50,228 0.02
03/11/24

CHIOLI
5.95 BBB+ Baal A- 17,426 17,553 0.01
05/08/24

CCBL 3.5

05/16/24 A A2 A 156,630 158,463 0.07

SHGANG 4
05/23/24 - - A- 54,588 55,354 0.02

1,011,039 | 1,015,972 0.45
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2019 31 0.45
) )
55.7 40.5
Cushman & Wakefield (HK) Limited
12
HSBC 55.2 40.1
12
17.0 12.3
Colliers International Pacific
Limited
CBRE CBRE Limited 1.2 0.9
Kabo Limited 1.0 0.8
( ) )
Gammon 1,230.0 34.0
Construction Limited
Ching 231.1 6.4
Lee Engineering Limited
Ka 146.8 4.1
Shun Contractors Limited
Jetline 116.5 3.2
Company Limited
Pat Davie Limited 115.1 3.2
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30
50.9 34.0
Nicholas Charles ALLEN
64 2016 2016
CLP CLP Holdings Limited
Lenovo Group Limited

2018 Stevin Rock LLC RAK

RAK Rock LLC

2019 Mordril Properties Limited

Development Company Limited

AlM
Securities and Futures Appeals Panel
Takeovers Appeal Committee
Committee
Accountants

Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong
Vision 2047 Foundation

2009 11 2016
Hysan
2010 2016 10
VinaLand Limited
2007

Takeovers and Mergers Panel

Share Registrars’

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
2010 2017

Disciplinary

2047
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The University of Manchester
Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 2017 Directors
of the Year 2017

George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY

57 2009 2010

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 104
1
International Council of Shopping Centres
Asia-Pacific Advisory Board Urban Land
Institute Our Hong Kong Foundation Limited
2016 2018 Charoen Pokphand Group
Harvard Business Review 2018 CEO0100 100
Best-Performing CEOs in the World 2018 EY 2017
EY Entrepreneur of the Year 2017 China Award
Country Winner of Hong Kong/Macau Region 2015 DHL SCMP
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards Business Person of
the Year 2011 -
University of Canterbury
The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania
Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute Corporate Advisory Council

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Institute of Shopping Centre Management
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Andy CHEUNG Lee Ming

52 2010 2018
27
Boston University McMaster University
The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
Y Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited
Hopewell Holdings Limited
lan Keith GRIFFITHS
64 2007
1983 2006 10
Aedas 13
1,400
1978 1980
The Royal Institute of British Architects
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
2009 Griffiths-Roch Foundation
Roch Castle Penrhiw Priory

Twry Felin
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Christopher John BROOKE

50 2018

Brooke Husband Limited

Governing Council

Hong Kong Rugby Union 2002 2015 12 CBRE
CBRE
Asia Pacific Strategic Group 2003
Insignia Brooke CBRE CBRE 1992
2003 Brooke Hillier Parker

Brooke International

1992 1989 Hillier Parker

Ed CHAN Yiu Cheong
56 2016

Treasury Wine Estates Limited
Yum China Holdings, Inc.
2019 SoftBank
Investment Advisers

C.P. C.P. Lotus
Corporation Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited 2006 11 2011 10
Walmart China 2001 11 2006
11 Dairy Farm Group

Bertelsmann Music Group

McKinsey & Co
The University of Chicago
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Sloan School of Management
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Blair Chilton PICKERELL

62 2016

NASDAQ
Principal Financial Group, Inc.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

104 (D
Tracker Fund
of Hong Kong
Anthemis Insurance Venture Growth Fund

2008 12 2014 11 The
University of Hong Kong Faculty of
Business and Economics

Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong

2015
1984 Jardine Matheson Holdings Group
2003 HSBC HSBC
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
2007 2010
Morgan Stanley Investment Management
2013 2017 12

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

Harvard Business School MBA
Stanford University
Poh Lee TAN
60 2015 11
2010 11 2012 10

Baker & McKenzie
2008 10 2010 10
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Mighty Oaks Foundation Limited
Independent Schools Foundation
London School of Economics

and Political Science University of Cambridge
Queens’ College

May Siew Boi TAN

63 2013
CLP HSBC HSBC
Insurance (Asia) Limited HSBC HSBC Life (International)
Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited 2014 2017
Cazenove Asia
Limited Cazenove and Co.
2009
Standard Chartered Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
(Standard Chartered Hong Kong)
2016 The Hong Kong Association of Banks Hong
Kong Trade Development Council Hong Kong Monetary Authority
The Exchange Fund Advisory Committee Currency Board
Sub-Committee 2012 2015
Listing Committee 2001 2013

(Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation)
Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service
Oxfam Hong Kong

The University of Sheffield
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Peter TSE Pak Wing
68 2014
2012
CLP 2013
1981 CLP Co. Deloitte & Co.
Swire Group 2018 12 2018 11 29

Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited

The University of Hong Kong
University of Stirling in Scotland

Nancy TSE Sau Ling
66 2014
1991 Hospital Authority
2013
Prince Philip Dental Hospital
The Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary
Care of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Wheelock and Company Limited DBS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC

HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited

University of California, Los Angeles

Elaine Carole YOUNG

54 2013

Ascott Residence Trust
Ascott Residence Trust Management Limited
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Shama 2010
ONYX Hospitality Group

co-living TULU

Warburg Pincus
NOVA NOVA Property Investment Co. Ltd.
2009 RBS
RBS Coutts/Financial Times Women in Asia Awards
Entrepreneur of the Year

NG Kok Siong

47 2018

2005 CapitalLand Group
Capitaland Limited
CapitaMalls Asia Limited
CapitaLand Mall Asia

REIT CapitalLand
Retail China Trust Management Limited
CapitalLand Retail China Trust
REIT CapitaLand Malaysia Mall REIT Management
Sdn. Bhd.
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall Trust

Nanyang Technological University
Dartmouth Colloege Tuck Executive Program
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Eric YAU Siu Kei
45
2010 11
2015

DBS CLP UBS
Jardine Fleming

Lorraine CHAN Kuen Kuen

50 2019

20
Unicersity of
Strathclyde MBA
2016
Stanford Executive Program 2018
Ricky CHAN Ming Tak
60
2010
35
Littauer Technologies Co., Ltd.
K K. Wah International Holdings Limited

Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited
University of London
The Law
Society of Hong Kong
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Christine CHAN Suk Han

44
20
China Resources Group Harvest
Capital Partners Limited ARA
ARA Asset Management (Prosperity) Limited
Hutchison Whampoa Properties Limited
New York University Stern
School of Business HKUST Business School
General
Practice Surveyor The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
Hong Kong Advisory Board
Gary FOK Yip Sang
52

2014
27
NF
InfraRed NF Investment Advisers Limited
New World Group
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators
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Peionie KONG Po Yan

49
2005
26
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
New World Development Company Limited
William LAl Hon Ming
56 2019
30
2007
Kennedy Western University MBA
Phyllis NG Yuen Fan
55 2016
17
2013
The University of Hong
Kong Guanghua School of Management of the Peking
University MBA
Max WONG Hon Keung
54
2013
27 HKR
HKR International Limited
Wong Tung & Partners Limited Kwan and Associates
Limited

Authorised Person
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2005 11
*

90

2020

7.12

30

2021

30
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2005 11
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2007 23
2007 LTI
10

2019 31 2007 LTI 1,407,782
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20 15 2013 2037 12
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2014 37 14
37
14 2014 2023 12 31 10
100 2016
120
20
2023 18
2016 37 14
37 14 2016 2023 12 31
80
20 2023 18
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20 15 2013 2037
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2019 31
)
( ) ( )
144,096 76.347
35,059 18.575
10,548 5.589
28,793 15.255
218,496 115.766
8,441 4.472
(37,611) (19.927)
(587) (0.311)
188,739 100.000
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
31 31 31 31 31

10,037 10,023 9,255 8,740 7,723
(2,348) (2,360) (2,261) (2,227) (2,054)
7,689 7,663 6,994 6,513 5,669
(405) 417) (342) (368) (437)
12,269 35,493 11,494 11,263 22,699
2,761 7,306 1,387 396 445
85 19 4 6 32
(598) (665) (567) (508) (359)
21,801 49,399 18,970 17,302 28,049
(1,359) (1,420) (1,057) (953) (819)
20,442 47,979 17,913 16,349 27,230
(5.,517) (5,254) (4,898) (4,368) (4,030)
14,925 42,725 13,015 11,981 23,200
13,260 44,609 12,461 11,404 23,217
1,552 (2,102) 352 523 an
113 218 202 54 -
14,925 42,725 13,015 11,981 23,200
20,329 47,761 17,711 16,295 27,230
(12,151) (35,270) (11,290) (11,209) (22,699)
250 368 73 24 -
90 - - - -
87 122) 107) (101) (46)
(2,761) (7.306) (1,312) (375) (421)
- (150) (83) 67) -
53 150 83 67 128
5,723 5,431 5,075 4,634 4,192
130.62 121.50 111.75 98.99 89.56
140.55 128.28 116.66 107.19 93.28
271.17 249.78 228.41 206.18 182.84
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
31 31 31 31 31

218,496 203,091 174,006 160,672 138,383

607 811 669 1,816 934

7,834 12,502 1,265 964 3,827

226,937 216,404 175,940 163,452 143,144

8,126 7,225 4,046 4,387 4,880

29,485 30,111 33,397 31,624 20,158

37,611 37,336 37,443 36,011 25,038

587 474 256 54 -

188,739 178,594 138,241 127,387 118,106

10.7 11.9 15.6 16.5 11.9

16.6 17.3 21.3 22.0 17.5

218,496 203,091 174,006 160,672 138,383

- 4.01 4.01 4.57 4.59 4.61
- 4.25-4.75 4.50-4.75 4.50 4.50-5.00
- 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.00

89.48 83.06 62.47 56.79 51.53

91.80 67.00 54.45 46.00 47.80

193,636 144,054 120,498 103,185 109,547

2.6 (19.3) (12.8) (19.0) (7.2)

2,109,321,254 |2,150,058,972 |2,213,002,276 |2,243,148,136 |2,291,770,269
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
31 31 31 31 31
68.0 62.4 55.3 50.0 45.4
72.5 66.7 58.9 53.7 48.7
21.0 31.2 23.4 29.0 23.3
22.5 29.1 23.8 25.9 22.0
97.1 97.0 96.1 96.0 94.8
76.4 76.4 75.3 74.6 73.4
4,380 4,463 4,927 5,250 5,124
2,719 2,492 2,239 2,022 1,767
30.2 38.9 32.6 39.1
23.8 13.3 10.8 12.8
98.5 99.5 99.6 99.5
95.5 99.3 100.0 100.0
2.77 2.12
(23.68) (28.86) (17.37) (16.29) (14.13)
3.0 3.7 4.2 4.5 3.8
10.30
26.3 24.3 22.2 20.0 17.8
92.25
2018 75.00 65.80 2018 54.20
2019 31 91.80 2018 67.00
2019 31 271.17
2018 249.78
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97.1
98.5
11
5.4
2019 32
2025 Vision 2025
7.2 7.1
/
0.1 10,037 2018 10,023 0.3 7,689
2018 7,663 12,269
2018 35,493
20,442 2018 47,979
/
2018 31 7.6 218,496 2018
31 203,091
6.9 7.7 89.48 2018 31
83.06
53 2018 5,723
2018 5,431 8.6 271.17
2018 249.78 130.62 2018
121.50 140.55 2018 128.28
11
2019 2019 29 91.80 2018
29 67.00
41 3.0
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7.6 218,496 2018 31 203,091
1.8 144,096
2018 31 141,513 1.6 35,059 2018 31
34,510
6.5 9.9
10,548 2018 31
8,733 2019 31 28,793
2018 31 18,335
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited DCF
2019 31 2018 31
3.98 3.98
4.14 4.14
4.01 4.01
4.25 -4.75 4.50 -4.75
4.25 4.25
2025

Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt Plaza
CentralWalk
12
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7.2 7.1
9.4
2019 31 2018 31
( )
5,420 5,460 ©.7) 6.5
925 905 2.2 11.1
137 149 (8.1) 4
178 177 0.6 5
1,496 1,537 Q.7 10.6
483 509 (5.1) 5.8
372 402 (7.5) (0.8)
9,011 9,139 1.4) 7.2
5,322 2018 5,339
98 2018 121
369 2018 397
2018
8.2
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2019 31 2018 31
)
542 570 (4.9) 6.1
484 431 12.3 23.8
203 211 (3.8) 5.7
249 284 (12.3) (3.7)
274 288 (4.9) 4.5
131 136 @G3.7) (4.0)
87 100 (13.0) 2.6
159 140 13.6 22.6
2,129 2,160 1.4) 8.2
2019 29 91.80
2018 29 67.00
2018 22
2019 31 97.1
22.5 2019 31 2018
31 62.4 68.0
)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31 31
)
6 31,985 1,313 86.7 83.0 95.4 96.3
33 78,978 3,533 75.1 70.6 97.8 97.7
58 33,133 1,535 48.9 45.0 97.0 96.8
) - 279 44.2 94.6
97 144,096 6,660 68.0 62.4 97.1 97.0
2019 12
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2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
31 31 31 31 31
97.4 97.4 21.0 31.2 84.0
92.2 92.9 28.7 12.9 9.1
99.5 97.1 9.6 15.0 6.9
97.1 97.0 22.5 29.1 100.0
2019 31
2020 26.4 25.9
2021 20.7 23.7
2022 43.8 47.1
9.1 3.3
100.0 100.0
9,000
5.4
5.1 5.0 6.7
13.5
13.9 12.2 14.3
2019 31
28.3 28.9
20.6 17.0
14.5 8.7
10.9 10.6
5.9 4.0
.9 7.0
.9 0.5
18.0 23.3
100.0 100.0
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56,000
9.4 2019 31
9.1 2,719
2019 31 2018 31
2,719 2,492
2019 31 2018 31
( ) 35,059 34,510
625 567
2019 2019
EC EC Mall Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt
Plaza Metropolitan Plaza Link
Square 1 & 2 CentralWalk 2019 31
13.2
1,026
807 16.1 18.0
7.6 9.4
98.5 30.2
23.8 2019
31 95.5 A
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2019 31
2020 22.4 29.7 19.8 20.5
2021 15.9 23.5 20.7 22.3
2022 60.2 46.8 55.0 57.2
1.5 4.5
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
15
Cheung Fat Plaza Choi Yuen Plaza Fu
Tai Shopping Centre Kai Tin Shopping Centre
Lok Fu Place Shun Lee Commercial Centre
Wo Che Plaza
2019 31
)
)
Fu Shin Shopping Centre ) 98 25.9
Homantin Plaza ) 116 24.2
Sam Shing Commercial Centre 35 20.9
Wan Tsui Commercial 154 13.8
Complex
Cheung Fat Plaza 108 21.8
Choi Yuen Plaza ) 45 18.1
Fu Tai Shopping Centre 58 26.7
Kai Tin Shopping Centre ) 22 35.6
Lok Fu Place ) 159 16.6
Shun Lee Commercial Centre 70 15.2
Wo Che Plaza ) 154 15.4
1,019
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Junction Road

18

580
6 516
18 750
28 1,846
)
Choi Ming Shopping Centre 94 2019
Nam Cheong Place ) 170 2019
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping 150 2019
Centre
Sheung Tak Plaza ) 166 2020
580
2019 2019
2019 12

2,560

Cuijingbei Lane 21

2019 23
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2019 6,600
A
20.0
A
2019
Kowloon East
The Quayside
2019
WeWork Gammon
2019
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Fuhua Road

Greater Bay Area

13.2

Nan Fung Development Limited
Hoi Bun Road 77

JP



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10.7
69.8
3.12
A A2 A
2019 0.75
2019
10 2018 11 3.2 2019 2.4
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
1,210 650 HIBOR
0.67 1.66 2019 31
3.12 2018 31 2.89 2019 31
69.8 2018 31 75.8
4.8 2018 31 5.3
12 120
107 2018 2018
2019 80
2019 31 42.1 32
37.9
53 2.51
60
2019 40 2024 1.6
2019 109.39
22.5
Sustainalytics Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Green Finance Framework
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2019 31 245 2018 31 263
161 2018 31 227
68 2018 31 117
93 2018 31 110
3.6 2018 31 3.9
10.7 2018 31 11.9
Moody’s EBITDA
5.0 5.5 6.0 6.5 2018 24
A2
2018
A 2019
Fitch Ratings 2019
26 A
2019
700
2019 31
L 27.8%
HAERET w— NN (0 EARTRUE FLRT)
et | = SRS
62.0% 10, 2%
2019 31
6.0 0.8 6.8 9.3 16.1
MTN 9.3 5.9 15.2 - 15.2
15.3 6.7 22.0 9.3 31.3
- 2.5 2.5 - 2.5
- 2.5 2.5 - 2.5
15.3 9.2 24.5 9.3 33.8

118/400



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31
MTN
2020 2.0 0.1 1.3 2.0 5.4
2021 2.5 0.1 0.4 2.5 5.5
2022 1.1 0.1 1.4 4.4 7.0
2023 0.8 0.2 1.2 0.2 2.4
2024 0.4 2.0 10.9 0.2 13.5
6.8 2.5 15.2 9.3 33.8
2019 31
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+852 2846 5000 +852 2968 0078
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2019 15
100 33

HSBC
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2019 31
SFC 2005
SEHK
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
2019
HSBC
125
77 The Quayside
700
SFC
HKIS 2017 HKIS
2017 RICS
RICS 2017
1VSC HKIS RICS
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3.0 4.2
3.5 4.8
3.0 4.7
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2019 31

4.05

138,625,800,000

4.01

35,059,300,000
4.23

173,685,100,000

1,386 2,580

350 5,930
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EC

2019

31

2019

2019 31

4.12

7,680,000,000

4.39

3,024,000,000

4.69

4,817,000,000

4.82

2,581,000,000

3.24

10,548,000,000

31

76

30

48

25
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6,600,000,000 66

3.36

10.764
3.2808

FHKIS MRICS RPS GP

E-131615

FHKIS MRICS RPS GP
30
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17

110

124

116

118

86

111

72

112

121

100

123

99

89

122

95

113

103

91

114

79

96

90

107

83

88

105

115

97

101

10

(Butterfly Plaza)

(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)

(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)

(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)

(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)

(Car Park within Kam On Court)

(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)

(Car Park within King Lai Court)

(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)

(Car Park within Lai On Estate)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin (1) Estate)

(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)

(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)

(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)

(Car Park within Po Pui Court)

(Car Park within San Wai Court)

(Car Park WithinISau Mau Ping (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate)

(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)

(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)

(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)
(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)

(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)

(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)

(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)

(Car Park within Yue On Court)

(Cheung Fat Plaza)

64

16

30

11

21

27

57

33

51

24

47

35

39

67

50

63

62

36

69

56

42

34

13

60

46

54

58

49

55
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(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)
(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)
(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)
(Chuk Yuen Plaza)
(Chung On Shopping Centre)
(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)
(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre
(Fu Tung Plaza)
(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)
(Heng On Commercial Centre)
(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)
(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)
(Hing Wah Plaza)
(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)
(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)
(Homantin Plaza)
(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)
(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)
(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)
(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)
(Lek Yuen Plaza)
(Leung King Plaza)
(Lok Fu Place)
(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)
(Long Ping Commercial Centre)
(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)
(Maritime Bay)
(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Nam Cheong Place)
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29

28

48

71

80

44

41

74

7

84

76

119

85

117

81

125

108

78

104

106

93

120

94

87

92

102

70

82

98

109

65

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)
(Retail and Car IIDIaIrk within Sau Mau Ping (Ill) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)
(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)

(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)

31

40

73

22

32

45

52

15

38

25

18

23

26

66

20

43

53

61

12

14

19

75

59

68

37
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(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)
(Sheung Tak Plaza)
(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)
(Shun On Commercial Centre)
(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
(Stanley Plaza)
(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)
T
(T Town)
(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)
(Tai Wo Plaza)
(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)
(Tak Tin Plaza)

Temple Mall North

Temple Mall South
(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)
(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)
(Tin Yiu Plaza)
TKO

TKO Gateway
(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)
(Un Chau Shopping Centre)
(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)
(Wo Che Plaza)
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)
(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))
(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)
(Yiu On Shopping Centre)
(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)

131/400



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Quayside

700
700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

Link Square, Shanghai
EC
EC Mall, Beijing
Metropolitan Plaza, Guangzhou

Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt Plaza, Beijing

CentralWalk, Shenzhen
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DCF
2019
31

IRR

Lok Fu Place 385,301 793 273.8  3.92% 7,836.2  7.50% 7,243.2 7,539.7 3.63%  8.88%

Lok Fu Place

Wang Shun House
Wang Tat House Wang Yat House

Lok Fu Estate 1983 1991
793
Link Properties Limited
New Kowloon Inland 6451 107,428/335,530
2007 12 31 50

T Town 206,671 1,177  260.5  3.90% 6,460.9  7.50% 6,052.1 6,256.5 4.16%  8.97%
Chung Fu Plaza

Tin Chung Court

1999 2000
1,177

Tin Shui Wai Town 18 A
18 2,021/363,535
1999 50

41 50,802/297,568
2010 50

198,305 940 202.9  4.02% 5,439.0 7.50% 5,127.8 5,283.4  3.84%  9.00%
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping

A
B
Tsz Lok Estate
1997 940 2019 31
183,073
198,305
6442 81,055/481,546
2007 10 50

TKO Gateway 165,935 623 185.8  3.79% 5,072.4  7.50% 4,613.9 4,843.2  3.84%  8.77%
11 Hau Tak 11 Shopping Centre 1993

Hau Tak Estate
623

Tseung Kwan O Town 99 49,962/324,918
2005 10 14 50
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IRR
Temple 146,528 688 188.8  3.81% 4,815.4  7.50% 4,384.1 4,599.8 4.10% 8.77%
Mall South
Wong Tai Sin Plaza
Lung Kwong House Lung Fai House Lung Lok House
Lung On House
1] Lower Wong Tai Sin Il Estate
1982 1983 688
6438 51,200/323,235 2007
17 50
185,117 461 178.6 4.01% 4,576.8 7.50% 4,329.7 4,453.3 4.01% 9.00%
Kai Tin Shopping Centre
Kai Tin Estate 1999 2003
461
6481 65,207/256,946 2009
29 50
Sheung Tak 129,372 1,280 169.6  4.00% 4,427.9  7.50% 4,168.8 4,298.4  3.94%  8.95%
Plaza
A B
C Sheung Mei House
Sheung Tak Estate 1998
1,280 Sheung
Tak Shopping Centre Sheung Tak Plaza
ABC Sheung Tak Car Park 1 Sheung
Tak Car park 2 Sheung Tak Car Park 3
2013 2019 31
131,678 129,372
98 95,092/467,545 2007 26
50
Temple 137,622 473 161.5  3.72% 4,385.5 7.50% 3,943.1 4,164.3 3.88%  8.69%
Mall North
Lung Cheung Plaza
Upper Wong Tai Sin Estate
2001 473
6439 53,974/311,854
2007 23 50
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9 154,847 611 171.4 4.00% 4,248.5 7.50% 3,954.2 4,101.4 4.18% 8.93%
Sau Mau Ping
Shopping Centre
A
Sau Mau Ping Estate 2002
611
6453 57,670/833,450
6453 10/833,450
2007 23 50
10 Cheung 165,550 590 165.6  4.03% 4,100.1  7.50% 3,829.6 3,964.9 4.18%  8.95%
Fat Plaza
Cheung Fat
Estate 1987 590
2019 31
165,734 165,550
Tsing Yi
Town 172 49,331/171,904 2005
12 22 50
11 Choi Yuen 125,384 536 168.4  4.10% 3,957.8  7.50% 3,682.4 3,820.1 4.41%  8.93%
Plaza
Choi Chu House Choi Yuk House
Choi Ping House Choi Wah House
1982
536
Fan ing Sheung Shui Town 230 34,746/286,392
2005 17 50
12 Wo Che 170,625 828 147.3  3.80% 3,897.3  7.50% 3,556.2 3,726.8 3.95%  8.79%
Plaza
1977 Tai Wo House
Foo Wo House Hau Wo House Chi Wo
house King Wo House
Wo Che Estate
828
Sha Tin
Town 549 55,437/474,742 2007
23 50
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13 Leung King 177,935 616 155.6  3.97% 3,836.4  7.50% 3,584.6 3,710.5 4.19%  8.96%
Plaza
1988
Leung King Estate
616
(Tuen Mun
Town) 458 54,922/426,295 2001
50
14 193,042 1,900 137.5 4.07% 3,527.5  7.50% 3,309.6 3,418.6  4.02%  8.99%
Yat Tung Shopping
Centre
Yat Tung Estate
2001 2003 1,900
Tung
Chung Town 30 107,811/930,819
2009 50
15 Tai Wo 128,116 454 142.8  4.08% 3,496.0 7.50% 3,232.6 3,364.3 4.24%  8.89%
Plaza
MTR
0i Wo House
On Wo House
Tai Wo Estate
Hei Wo House
1989 454
Tai Po Town
176 40,117/414,930 2000
10 50
16 91,492 765 134.6  4.01% 3,450.4  7.50% 3,198.2 3,324.3 4.05%  8.90%
Choi Ming Shopping Centre
Choi Ming Court
Kin Ming Estate
2001 2003
765 2019 31
91,492
91,492
82 44,614/346,996 109
39,133/420,644 2001 50
82 2010 15 50
109
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17 Butterfly 174,730 313 139.2 4.22% 3,422.2  7.50% 3,219.9 3,321.1 4.19%  9.01%
Plaza
Tip Ling House Tip Sum House
Butterfly Estate
1983
313
473
38,316/248,783 2005 10 14 50
18 130,309 302 130.8  4.00% 3,261.8  7.50% 3,012.6 3,137.2 4.17%  8.88%
Tin Chak Shopping
Centre
Tin Chak Estate
2001 302
37 38,810/272,897 2005 10 14
50
19 100,769 0 128.4  4.00% 3,066.5 7.50% 2,830.2 2,948.4 4.35%  8.88%
Yau Mei
Ko Cheung Lei  Yue Mun
Plaza
Yau Mei Court J K L
2001
6459
19,357/392,161 2005
50
20 Tin Yiu 93,297 480 119.0  4.02% 2,869.5 7.50% 2.656.0 2,762.8 4.31%  8.89%
Plaza
Tin Yiu
Estate 1992
480
38 31,581/574,611 2005 17
50
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21 Chuk Yuen 138,546 1,103  119.1  4.20% 2,830.2 7.50% 2,678.1 2,754.2  4.33%  9.05%
Plaza
Chui Yuen
House
Sau Yuen House
Chuk Yuen South Estate
1984 1,103
6452 62,198/354,665
2007 16 50
22 Siu Sai 99,942 558 115.5  3.96% 2,817.2  7.50% 2,606.0 2,711.6  4.26%  8.89%
Wan Plaza
12
Sui Yick House
Siu Sai Wan Estate
1989 558
Chai
Wan Inland 176 34,606/418,894
2007 26 50
23 78,245 1,458  109.7  4.00% 2,754.8  7.50% 2,547.5 2,651.2  4.14%  8.89%
Tin Shing Shopping Centre
(Tin Shing Commercial
Centre) Tin Shing Court
2000 1,458
1997
11 28 50 17 A
17 1,480/357,800
24 Fu Tung 104,879 537 109.1  4.21% 2,581.3  7.50% 2,445.1 2,513.2 4.34%  9.06%
Plaza
Fu Tung Estate
1997 537
40
44,218/209,377 2008 30 50
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25 Tak Tin 97,580 754 96.5 4.05% 2,384.9  7.50% 2,223.2 2,304.1 4.19%  8.94%
Plaza
14
A 10 B Tak Hong
House C
Tak King House
Tak Shing House 1991
754
6326 25,782/308,756 1999
18 50
26 74,948 577 98.6 4.00% 2,360.6  7.50% 2,199.3 2,280.0 4.32%  8.94%
Tin Shui Shopping
Centre
Tin Shui Estate
1992 577
39 34,646/599,404 2007 50
27 82,430 995 97.1 4.18% 2,322.9  7.50% 2,194.1 2,258.5 4.30%  9.04%
Chung On Shopping
Centre
Chun Ping House
Chung On Estate 1996
995
544
41,385/223,886 2005 10 14 50
28 0i Man 187,244 808 86.2 4.13% 2,322.3  7.50% 2,167.0 2,244.7  3.84%  8.96%
Plaza

A D
Chiu Man House Hong Man
House Chung Man House
0i Man Estate 1975
808
New Kowloon Inland 9826 54,395/204,983
1968 75
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29 Nan Fung 81,434 0 78.9 3.70% 2,356.6  7.50% 2,122.4 2,239.5 3.52%  8.70%
Plaza
1999
23 154,634/1,485,995 8648 1995 11 21
2047 30
30 162,670 859 81.4 4.18% 2,245.5  7.50% 2,115.8 2,180.7 3.73%  9.02%
Choi Wan Commercial
Complex
15
Fei Fung House
Choi Wan Estate 1980
859
6461 61,003/394,552
2008 12 29 50
31 96,488 662 88.0 4.07% 2,208.2  7.50% 2,079.3 2,143.8 4.10%  9.01%
Sha Kok Commercial
Centre
Osprey House Sand Martin House
Sha Kok
Estate 1980 662
552
32,438/340,309 2008 50
32 Stanley 98,533 411 71.9 3.80% 2,128.1  7.50% 2,002.3 2,065.2  3.48%  8.99%
Plaza

1999 2000
Murray House
Village Square
Ma Hang Estate Lung Tak Court
Leung Ma House

411
Stanley
Inland 98 37,045/116,974
2009 11 50
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33 105,549 525 80.2 4.00% 2,020.8 7.50% 1,887.8 1,954.3 4.11%  8.95%
Fu Shin Shopping
Centre
Fu Shin
Estate 1986
525
189
33,761/330,620 2005 10 14 50
34 Lek Yuen 106,208 438 78.0 4.03% 1,952.2  7.50% 1,809.5 1,880.9 4.15%  8.90%
Plaza
Wing Shui
House Wah Fung House Fu Yu House (Fook
Hoi House) Kwai Wo House
Lek Yuen Estate
1976 438
550
28,600/199,774 2007 50
35 110,395 585 76.7 4.07% 1,932.2  7.50% 1,818.5 1,875.4  4.09%  9.00%
Heng On Commercial
Centre
1987
Heng On Estate
585
500
C 39,206/40,831 500
812/247,314
1998 50
36 Homantin 101,179 299 80.8 4.12% 1,945.0 7.50% 1,803.3 1,874.2 4.31% 8.91%
Plaza
Ho Man Tin Estate
2001 299
1998
11 20 50 11119 A
3,411/57,202 11119
20,327/214,270
37 105,873 1,175 74.4 4.00% 1,930.1  7.50% 1,804.8 1,867.5 3.99%  8.96%
Yu Chui Shopping Centre
Yu Chui Court
2001 1,175
462
2001 18

48,967/361,200

50
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IRR

38 136,548 594 69.5 4.06% 1,924.7 7.50% 1,794.6 1,859.7  3.74%  8.94%
Tai Yuen Commercial
Centre
B A
Tai Man House Tai Tak House Tai Wing House
Tai Yuen Estate
1980 594

192

38,718/353,530 2007 29 50

39 90,946 636 71.7 4.16% 1,894.1  7.50% 1,792.6 1,843.4  3.89%  9.05%

Hin Keng Shopping Centre
Hin Keng Estate
1987 636

503

37,320/396,392 2000 10 50

40 201,691 731 69.3 4.25% 1,845.3  7.50% 1,738.4 1,791.9 3.87%  9.02%

Shun Lee Commercial
Centre
A C B
Lee Foo House Lee Hong House
Lee Yat House Lee Yip House
Shun Lee Estate 1978
731
6465 56,354/295,872 2010
31 50
41 83,133 1,083 71.4 3.97% 1,839.1  7.50% 1,730.1 1,784.6 4.00%  9.00%
Po Tat Shopping Centre
A C
D F Tat
Cheung House Po Tat Estate
2002

6470
50

75,195/546,029

142/400
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42 81,542 736 73.5
Kwong Yuen Shopping
Centre
1991
29,929/279,026
43 113,912 421 70.6

Tsui Ping North
Shopping Circuit

Tsui Lau House
Tsui Yue House

1990

Tong Inland 754

2002 24 50

44 87,075 398 62.7

Po Lam Shopping Centre
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IRR

4.20% 1,762.5 7.50% 1,668.4 1,715.5 4.28%  9.05%

Kwong Yuen Estate
736
506
2001 50

4.10% 1,735.1  7.50% 1,632.8 1,684.0 4.19%  9.01%

Tsui Tsz House
Tsui Pak House Tsui O House
Tsui To House
Tsui Ping North Estate
421
Kwun
31,542/345,220

4.24% 1,524.7  7.50% 1,451.1 1,487.9 4.21%  9.09%

Po Ning House

Po Kan House

398
88 25,495/341,494
50
45 75,506 620 60.1
Sun Chui Shopping
Centre
1983
27,934/395,903

Po Lam Estate 1989

2004 10 19

4.02% 1,5617.3  7.50% 1,391.3 1,454.3 4.13%  8.83%

Sun Yee House
Sun Chui Estate
620
554
2009 25 50
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46 89,358 564 58.1 4.02% 1,506.9  7.50% 1,397.8 1,452.4  4.00% 8.91%
Long Ping
Commercial Centre
1987
Yuk Ping House
Shek Ping House Kang Ping House
Long Ping Estate
564
Yuen Long
Town 521 32,958/498,969 2006
15 50
47 71,858 487 53.9 4.00% 1,461.4  7.50% 1,353.7 1,407.6 3.83%  8.90%
Fung Tak Shopping Centre
Ban Fung House Ngan Fung House
1991 487
1998
50 6318 A C
6318 1,070/202,138
48 81,029 634 58.3 4.14% 1,443.9  7.50% 1,362.8 1,403.4 4.15%  9.03%
0i Tung Shopping Centre
0i Sin House
01 Tung Estate
2000 634
Shau Kei Wan Inland 849 34,910/194,191
2005 17 50
49 75,843 375 56.8 4.05% 1,431.2 7.50% 1,337.4 1,384.3 4.10% 8.96%
Mei Lam Shopping Centre
Mei Lam Commercial Centre
Mei Fung House
1981
375
558
29,125/273,313 2010 22 50
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50 Hing Wah 82,011 268
Plaza

May Wah House
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IRR

57.8 4.04% 1,435.8  7.50% 1,330.1 1,383.0 4.18%  8.90%

Hing Wah Estate

2000 268
177 27,675/160,197 2007 28
50
51 61,726 635 60.9 4.13% 1,423.0 7.50% 1,335.5 1,379.3  4.42%  9.00%
Fu Tai Shopping
Centre
Fu Tai
Estate 2000
635
418
38,769/382,833 2001 12 50
52 101,698 672 55.0 4.20% 1,405.3 7.50% 1,324.0 1,364.7 4.03%  9.02%
Tai Hing Commercial
Centre
1977
Tai Hing Estate
Tai Fong Street
672
484
27,288/474,882 2009 18
50
53 50,180 213 53.3 3.65% 1,429.8 7.50% 1,290.3 1,360.1 3.92% 8.71%
Un Chau Shopping
Centre
Un Chau Estate
Un Hong House
1999 213
6478 17,388/355,830 2010
11 50

145/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
54 63,197 440 53.2 4.02% 1,326.6  7.50% 1,236.0 1,281.3 4.15%  8.94%
Lung  Hang
Commercial Centre
Lung Hang Estate
1983 440
557
23,047/289,255 2010 31 50
55 (Nam
Cheong Place) 56,519 547 41.5 4.00% 1,303.9 7.50% 1,214.0 1,259.0 3.29%  8.88%
Fu Cheong Shopping Centre
Fu Hoi House Fu Yee House
2002 547 2019
31 32,222
56,519
6437 31,469/355,647 2005
17 50
56 69,294 461 50.6 4.09% 1,273.8  7.50% 1,194.4 1,234.1 4.10% 8.99%
Kwong  Fuk
Commercial Centre
Kwong Yan House
Kwong Fuk Estate
1983 461
196
23,946/351,384 2010 17 50
57 55,030 517 53.0 4.23% 1,245.5 7.50% 1,186.1 1,215.8 4.36%  9.09%
Fu Heng Shopping Centre
Fu Heng Estate
1990 517
178
22,900/358,013 2000 10 50
58 Maritime Bay 41,017 0 47.0 3.70% 1,252.7 7.50% 1,125.5 1,189.1 3.96%  8.68%
1998
HK Great Land (HK) Limited
49 573/5,411
SK8530 1995 27 2047 30
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
59 47,684 547 47.3 4.03% 1,232.1 7.50% 1,144.8 1,188.5 3.98%  8.92%
Yiu On Shopping Centre
1989
Yiu On Estate
547
505
12,616/306,501 1999 18 50
60 98,078 650 48.0 4.10% 1,203.6  7.50% 1,122.7 1,163.2 4.12%  8.95%
Lok Wah Commercial
Centre
Po Wah House Kan Wah House Lap Wah House
Tat Wah House Ning Wah House Shun Wah House
Lok Wah North
Estate 1985
650
6460 38,134/513,788 667/513,788
2008 50
61 82,792 359 49.0 4.18% 1,134.0 7.50% 1,058.0 1,096.0 4.47%  8.96%
Wan Tsui Commercial
Complex
Hei Tsui House
Chak Tsui House
Yee Tsui House Shing Tsui House
Lee Tsui House
Wan Tsui Estate
1979 359
180 26,208/222,534 2010
31 50
62 40,360 225 46.4 3.97% 1,136.5 7.50% 1,050.5 1,093.5 4.24%  8.88%
Hoi Fu Shopping Centre
Hoi Fu Court E
D 1999
225
11141 9,413/204,120 1999
16 50
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2019
31

IRR
63 34,560 637 45.0 4.10% 1,096.3  7.50% 1,033.4 1,064.9 4.23%  9.02%
Hiu Lai Shopping Centre
Hiu Tin House Hiu On House
1996 637
6205 A 6205
1,000/249,375 1994 11 11 2047
30
64 71,123 353 42.5 3.98% 1,067.1  7.50% 1,001.0 1,034.1 4.11% 8.98%
Cheung Wah Shopping
Centre
Cheung Lai House Cheung Chung
House Cheung Wah Estate
1984 353
226 26,310/299,811 2004
16 50
65 67,725 176 36.2 4.02% 912.4 7.50% 852.4 882.4 4.10%  8.95%
Sam  Shing
Commercial Centre
Sam Shing Estate Chun Yu House
Moon Yu House Fung Yu House
1980
176
481
14,434/115,271 2010 22
50
66 36,865 289 36.1 3.98% 908.9 7.50% 847.5 878.2 4.12%  8.95%
Tin Tsz Shopping Centre
Tsz Ping House
1997 Tin Tsz Estate
289
40 17 511/202 482 2007 29
50

148/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
67 53,034 420 26.6 4.00% 691.1 7.50% 642.3  666.7 3.99%  8.92%
Hing Tung Shopping Centre
Hing Tung
Estate Yiu Hing Road
1995 420
851 23,786/155,258 2010
50
68 63,838 685 22.9 4.20% 625.9 7.50% 601.0 613.5 3.73%  9.14%
Yiu Tung Shopping Centre
1994
Yiu Tung Estate
Yiu
Hing Road Nam Hong Street 685
852 35,548/381,831
2010 29 50
69 36,623 273 23.7 3.97% 607.0 7.50% 561.5  584.3 4.05%  8.89%
Kin Sang Shopping
Centre
1990
Kin Sang Estate 273
441
A 14,100/28,621 1998
50
70 37,909 493 20.8 4.14% 557.8 7.50% 528.2  543.0 3.83%  9.05%
Retail
and Car Park within Tung
Tau Estate

Cheung Tung House
Yue Tung House
11
1982

6413
24 50

16,942/349,186

149/400

Hong Tung House
Wong Tung House
Tung Tau Il Estate
493

On Tung House

2002



71 24,344 406 23.2 4.29% 552.5
Ping Tin Shopping Centre
Tin Estate
406
6446 16,966/362,174
2009 30 50
72 0 763 21.8 4.60% 483.0
Car Park within Kin Ming
Estate
Kin Ming Estate
763
109 39,133/420,644
2010 15 50
73 81,478 459 15.8 4.10% 477.5
Shun On Commercial
Centre
House On Yat House
Shun On Estate
1978 459
6472 20,130/179,429
2008 28 50
74 3,915 18.7 4.18% 450.1
Retail and
Car Park within Cheung On
Estate

50

Cheung On Estate

1988

150/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
7.50% 526.2 539.4 4.30%  9.10%
Ping
1997
7.50% 477.3  480.2 4.54%  9.37%
2003
7.50% 448.1  462.8 3.41%  8.99%
On Kwan House On Chung
7.50% 430.1 440.1 4.26%  9.12%
On Tao House
484
1998
160 D F
160 403/293,522



75 10,584 150 17.0 3.98% 435.1
Yin Lai Court
Shopping Centre
1991
King 150
389 A
2047 30
76 17,956 549 16.3 3.91% 429.9
Retail and Car
Park within Hong Pak Court
1993
549
6095 A
2047 30
77 11,532 333 17.7 4.38% 404.2
Retail and
Car Park within Cheung Wang
Estate
2001
13,010/259, 640
78 16,183 226 12.5 4.35% 325.5
Retail
and Car Park
within Lok Wah South
Estate
Chin Wah House
On Wah House
1982
6460 13,231/513,788 667/513,788

2008 50

151/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
7.50% 404.0 419.6 4.06%  8.92%
Lai
1990 21
7.50% 403.9  416.9 3.92%  8.99%
1991 25
7.50% 389.8  397.0 4.46%  9.18%
Cheung Wang Estate
333
178
2009 25 50
7.50% 314.2  319.9 3.91%  9.18%

Lok Wah South Estate
226
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DCF
79 0 560 11.9 4.00% 300.6 7.50% 284.1
Car Park within Tin
Yuet Estate
2000 Tin Yuet Estate
560
41 50,802/297,568
50
80 13,686 0 9.8 3.00% 311.5 7.50% 265.1
Po Hei Court
Commercial Centre
1993 Po Hei Court
6117 1,354/20,256
2047 30
81 7,332 323 11.3 4.11% 284.1 7.50% 270.3
Retail and Car
Park within Ko Chun Court
1993 12
Chun Court Chun Moon House C
323
2047 30
A
530/81,791
82 7,342 379 10.8 3.92% 282.5 7.50% 265.1
Retail and Car Park
within Wo Ming Court
1999
11 28 50
52
83 0 411 11.5 4.20% 272.5 7.50% 261.5
Car Park within Wah Lai
Estate
2001
445 A 21,700/102,614
2001 25 50

152/400

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
31
IRR
292.4 4.05%  9.03%
2010
288.3 3.41%  8.30%
A B
1992 17
277.2 4.09%  9.09%
Ko
1993
6189
6189
273.8 3.93%  8.99%
Wo Yat House A
379
1997
52 A
728/82,796
267.0 4.32%  9.15%
411



84 9,118 348 9.9 4.03%
Retail and Car Park
within Ching Wah Court
348
A
2047
85 7,040 355 9.9 4.01%
Retail and Car
Park within Hong Yat Court
1993
6329 4,582/99,200
50
86 Car 0 348 10.1 4.00%
Park within Ka Tin Court
Ka Tin Court
1988 348
A
2047
87 21,283 291 8.2 3.96%
Retail and Car
Park within Tong Ming
Court
Tong Wong House
1999
54 A
1,153/98,512
2047 30
88 0 408 8.5 3.60%
Car Park within Wang Fuk
Court
1983
A
2047

153/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
269.9 7.50% 255.2  262.6 3.78%  9.04%
1984
100
1898 99
30
254.2 7.50% 240.3  247.3 4.02%  9.04%
Hong Yat Court 13
355
2001
250.4 7.50% 236.6 243.5 4.15%  9.04%
290
1898 99
30
242.5 7.50% 230.2 236.4 3.48%  9.05%
Tong Fu House
291
54
1997 26
238.7 7.50% 218.6  228.7 3.72%  8.81%
408
27
1898 99
30



89

90

91

92

93

Car
Park Fung

Court

within  Ning

Car Park within Tsz Man
Estate

Car
Estate

Park within Tin King

Retail and Car Park within
Tsui Wan Estate

Retail and Car Park within
Tin Wah Estate
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
0 299 8.9 3.70% 236.8 7.50% 218.6  227.7 3.89%  8.87%
2001 299
477 3,072/78,707 1999 10 15 50
0 364 10.3 4.50% 228.2 7.50% 223.9 226.1 4.57%  9.31%
1994 Tsz Man Estate
364
6441 9,121/139,291
2008 28 50
0 380 9.0 3.90% 229.4 7.50% 215.1 222.3 4.06%  8.98%
1989
Tin King Estate
380
444
4,036/197,161 1999 18 50
13,631 182 8.5 3.91% 223.1 7.50% 206.3 @ 214.7 3.96%  8.88%
1993 /
Tsui Wan Estate
182
166 3,254/123,068 1999 18 50
1,476 287 8.8 3.95% 220.4 7.50% 206.0 213.2 4.13%  8.96%
1999 Tin Wah Estate
287
43 11,225/236,423 2010 12
50

154/400



Tsui Ping (South) Estate

94 8,784 446 8.7 4.20% 216.1
Retail and
Car Park within Tin Yat
Estate
2001
Tin Yat Estate
42 15,485/226,221
50
95 0 277 8.2 3.90% 208.8
Car Park within Po Pui
Court
1995
728 A
1994 2047 30
96 5,275 229 8.7 4.66% 198.3
Car Park within Tsui
Ping South Estate
1990
229
755 6,785/291,576
1 27 50
97 Car 0 274 7.6 3.90% 198.1
Park within Ying Ming
Court
1989
Town A
1898 99 2047 30
98 7,019 262 7.1 3.93% 191.9
Retail and Car Park within
Yan Ming Court
1990
A
2047 30

155/400

DCF

7.50%

7.50%

7.50%

7.50%

7.50%
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2019
31
IRR
207.2 211.7 4.13%  9.14%
446
2008 10 28
195.8  202.3 4.07%  8.98%
277
196.6  197.5 4.42% 9.3
2009
185.8  192.0 3.97%  8.98%
274
Junk Bay
180.3  186.1 3.82%  9.00%
262
1987 22
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
99 Car 0 345 6.6 3.50% 190.5 7.50% 173.0 181.8 3.66%  8.75%
Park within Ming Nga Court
1985 Ming Nga Court
345
1898
99 2047 30
36 A
100 0 181 7.5 4.40% 176.9 7.50% 172.3  174.6 4.30%  9.26%
Car Park within Lai On
Estate
1993 Lai On Estate
181
2009
50 6482
5,099/90,111
101 0 296 6.3 3.90% 166.4 7.50% 155.8  161.1 3.90%  8.97%
Car Park within Yue On
Court
1988
296
117 A 1982
75 75
102 13,306 199 6.3 4.38% 158.9 7.50% 154.1  156.5 4.05%  9.23%
Retail and Car
Park within Tsz Oi Court
111 Phase 111 of Tsz 0i Court 1997
2000 199
6211 A 1995
2047 30
6265 699/113,761 1999 50
103 1 0 395 5.4 3.50% 160.7 7.50% 145.9  153.3 3.51%  8.75%
Car Park within
Sau Mau Ping 1 Estate
2002 Sau Ming House
B |
395
6453 14,364/833,450 10/833,450

2007 23 50

156/400



104 8,112 156 5.5 3.93% 156.8
Retail and Car Park
within Nam Cheong Estate
Cheong Shun House
On House Cheong Yin House
Nam Cheong Estate
156
6427 3,670/109,764
50
105 0 240 5.6 3.70% 156.6
Car Park within Yee Kok
Court
1981
99
5911
106 11 1,507 205 6.0 4.15% 141.2
Retail and Car Park within
Sau Mau Ping 111 Estate
1996 11
6453 7,222/833,450
2007 23 50
107 0 228 5.9 4.40% 136.5
Car Park
within Upper Ngau Tau Kok
Estate
2002

Tau Kok Estate

6471
50

9,334/126,664

157/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
7.50% 146.6  151.7 3.63%  8.96%
Cheong Yat House Cheong
1989
2005 17
7.50% 144.5  150.6 3.75%  8.86%
240
1898
30
A
7.50% 134.6  137.9 4.37%  9.10%
Sau Mau Ping 11l Estate
205
7.50% 133.0 134.8 4.35%  9.25%
Upper Ngau
228
2008



108 12,616 265
Retail and Car
Park within Lok Nga Court

1984
Lok Nga Court

99
109 786 163
Retail and Car
Park within Ying Fuk
Court
2001
6266
50
110 Car 0 179
Park within Ching Wang
Court
2001
2,516/36,665
111 0 238
Car Park within Kam On
Court
1987
99
112 Car 0 158
Park within King Lai Court
1989
5943
2047 30
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DCF
2019
31
4.6 3.66% 140.0 7.50% 128.7 134.4
2047 30
5969 A
5969 1/28,952
5.1 4.06% 135.3 7.50% 128.0  131.7
163
5.0 3.90% 134.0 7.50% 125.6  129.8
Ching Wang Court
179
1999
5.1 3.90% 132.4 7.50% 124.2  128.3
2047 30
283 A
3.9 3.70% 111.9 7.50% 103.3  107.6
158
A

158/400

IRR
3.45%  8.83%
265
1898
3.87%  9.05%
1999
3.86%  8.98%
137
20 50
3.95%  8.98%
238
1898
3.63%  8.87%
1985



113 Car 0 185
Park within San Wai Court
1990
185
A
30
114 0 192
Car Park within Tin Yau
Court
1992
192
10 A
2047 30
115 0 159
Car Park within Yee Nga
Court
1993
A
30
116 Car 0 134
Park within Fung Lai Court
1997
6240
2047 30
117 3,994 45
Retail and Car
Park  within Hung Hom
Estate
Hung Fai House
Inland 554
29 50

4.3

3.9

3.7

3.1

1,512/33,911

2.9

3.90%

3.90%

3.70%

3.70%

3.78%

1999

1,573/51,548

159/400

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DCF
2019
31
IRR
108.9 7.50% 102.1  105.5 4.10%  8.98%
326
1989 2047
105.9 7.50% 99.3 102.6 3.81%  8.98%
1992 23
106.7 7.50% 98.5 102.6 3.57%  8.87%
Yee Nga Court 159
120
1991 22 2047
91.9 7.50% 84.9 88.4 3.52%  8.87%
Fung Lai Court
134
1996
89.1 7.50% 81.9 85.5 3.38%  8.84%

Hung Hom Estate
45

Hung Hom
2008



118 93 3.3
Car Park within Hong Keung
Court
1999
6239
119 345 102 2.7
Retail and Car
Park  within Hong  Shui
Court
1999
102
6227 A
14
120 9,946 79 2.3
Retail and Car
Park within Tin Wang Court
1992
79
6131
21 2047 30
121 88 2.3
Car Park within Kwai Hong
Court
1993
420 1,100/35,351
2047 30
122 67 1.8
Car Park within Pang Ching
Court
1991
67
6121 A
21 2047 30

4.20%

3.90%

4.03%

4.00%

4.30%

160/400
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DCF

85.4 7.50% 81.9

93

1999

67.7 7.50% 63.5

66.7 7.50% 63.2

65.8 7.50% 62.2

45.2 7.50% 43.7

Pang Ching Court

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
31
IRR
83.7 4.00%  9.14%
Hong Keung Court
50
65.6 4.15%  8.98%
1998
65.0 3.58%  9.04%
1991
64.0 3.57%  9.05%
88
1990
44.5 3.99%  9.18%
1990



123 1 0
Car Park
within Lower Wong Tai Sin
I Estate
House
6373
50
124 0
Car Park within
Chuk Yuen North Estate
6327
50
125 0
Retail and Car
Park within Ko Yee Estate
38
6480
50
1 The Quayside
Street
Bun Road
2015
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
70 1.4 3.70% 37.1 7.50% 34.3 35.7 3.86% 8.87%
1982 Lung Wah House Lung Chak
70
674/240,107 2001
61 0.9 4.70% 24.3 7.50% 24.2 24.3 3.88%  9.38%
1987
61
687/364,071 1999 18
38 0.6 3.62% 16.4 7.50% 13.9 15.2 3.81%  8.26%
1994
Ko Yee Estate
1,518/80,343 2010
2019 31
73,658 883,524 10,548.0
77 Hoi Bun Road 77 Hung Yip
Wai Yip Street Shun Yip Street Hoi
6512 20240
Century Land Investment Limited
23 50 6512

161/400



2

700
700 Nathan
Road, Mong Kok

Link Square, Shanghai

EC EC Mall,
Beijing

Metropolitan Plaza,
Guangzhou

(Beijing Jingtong
Roosevelt Plaza, Beijing

2019 31
284,767 5,470.1
Trade and Industry Department Tower 23
8 T.0.P This is
our Place
Link Monte (HK) Limited.
10470 24,750/25,000 11419
1980 30
2019
31
IRR
7,375 75,780 226 337.4  4.29% 7,913.0 7.25% 7,456.0 7,680.0 4.39%  6.87%
98,080 83,155
2003
Shanghai Xing Bang Properties
Co., Ltd.
55,423 0 251 141.9  4.50% 2,994.0 7.50% 3,053.0 3,024.0 4.69% 7.62%
251 70,946
55,423 2009
ECM (ECM Property Holding
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd.)
88,726 0 1,034 232.1 4.75% 4,918.0 7.75% 4,716.0 4,817.0 4.82%  7.50%
The
Riverside 2011
B1 B2 L1-L3 88,726.34
Guangzhou Qian Qing Hui Real
Estate Company Ltd. 271
67,546 0 576 83.7 4.75% 2,575.0 8.50% 2,587.0 2,581.0 3.24%  8.35%
B L 86,377
67,546 576

Real Estate Management Company Limited

162/400
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DCF
2019
31
IRR
83,900 0 741 221.9 4.25% 6,634.0 8.25% 6,568.0 6,600.0 3.36% 8.26%
CentralWalk, Shenzhen
B B L UGG
Bl L1
83,900 B 741

Baoyi Property Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd 344

163/400



19
29
58
80

72
79
83
86
88
89
90
91
95
96
97
99
100
101
103
105
107
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
118
121
122
123
124

2019

31

164/400
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C.
b.
e
1 700 (
f.
1
2 EC
3
4
5
C
' 995%
(Lok Fu Place) -995%
2 T
0
(T Town) .315%
’ 799%
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre) - 0
4 TKO
0
TKO Gateway .566%
5
0)
Temple Mall South -437%
6
0,
(Kai Tin Shopping Centre) -360%
7
0
(Sheung Tak Plaza) -277%
8
0)
Temple Mall North .206%
9
0)
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre) -173%
10
0)
(Cheung Fat Plaza) -101%
11
0
(Choi Yuen Plaza) -024%
12
0
(Wo Che Plaza) .975%
13
0
(Leung King Plaza) -966%
14
0
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre) -811%
15
0)
(Tai Wo Plaza) .783%
° .761%

(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)

165/400
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i (Butterfly Plaza) .760%
’ (Tin Chak Shopping Centre) .662%
19

(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza)) -562%
i (Tin Yiu Plaza) .464%
i (Chuk Yuen Plaza) .459%
i (Siu Sai Wan Plaza) .437%
“ (Tin Shing Shopping Centre) -405%
* (Fu Tung Plaza) .332%
i (Tak Tin Plaza) .221%
i (Tin Shui Shopping Centre) .208%
i (Chung On Shopping Centre) -197%
i (0i Man Plaza) .189%
? (Nan Fung Plaza) .187%
» (Choi Wan Commercial Complex) .155%
¥ (Sha Kok Commercial Centre) .136%
* (Stanley Plaza) .094%
> (Fu Shin Shopping Centre) .035%
* (Lek Yuen Plaza) .997%
® (Heng On Commercial Centre) -994%
” (Homantin Plaza) -993%
7 (Yu Chui Shopping Centre) .989%
* (Tai Yuen Commercial Centre) -985%
» (Hin Keng Shopping Centre) L977%
® (Shun Lee Commercial Centre) -949%
“ (Po Tat Shopping Centre) .946%
* (Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre) -909%
© (Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit) -892%
“ (Po Lam Shopping Centre) .788%

166/400
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® (Sun Chui Shopping Centre) .770%
* (Long Ping Commercial Centre) - 770%
Y (Fung Tak Shopping Centre) .746%
® (Oi Tung Shopping Centre) .744%
* (Mei Lam Shopping Centre) . 733%
? (Hing Wah Plaza) .733%
" Fu Tai Shopping Centre .731%
N (Tai Hing Commercial Centre) .723%
i (Un Chau Shopping Centre) .721%
i (Lung Hang Commercial Centre) -679%
” (Nam Cheong Place) .667%
” (Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre) .654%
! (Fu Heng Shopping Centre) .644%
i (Maritime Bay) .630%
. (Yiu On Shopping Centre) .630%
i (Lok Wah Commercial Centre) .616%
i (Wan Tsui Commercial Complex) -581%
" (Hoi Fu Shopping Centre) .579%
” (Hiu Lai Shopping Centre) -564%
i (Cheung Wah Shopping Centre) .548%
i (Sam Shing Commercial Centre) .468%
” (Tin Tsz Shopping Centre) .465%
i (Hing Tung Shopping Centre) .353%
” (Yiu Tung Shopping Centre) .325%
¥ (Kin Sang Shopping Centre) .310%
" i ithi .288%
(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)
" (Ping Tin Shopping Centre) -286%
” (Car Park within Kin Ming Estate) -254%
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73
0
(Shun On Commercial Centre) - 245%
74 . - .233%
(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)
75
0)
(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre) -222%
76 . - .221%
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)
77 210%
(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate) : !
8 169Y%
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate) B
79
0
(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate) -155%
80
0)
(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre) -153%
81 . - L147%
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)
82 . - . .145%
(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
83
0
(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate) - 141%
84 . - - .139%
(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)
8 . - .131%
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)
86
0,
(Car Park within Ka Tin Court) -129%
87 . - - .125%
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
88
0
(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court) -121%
89
0
(Car Park within Ning Fung Court) -121%
90
0,
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate) -120%
91
0)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate) -118%
92 . - - .114%
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
% . — L113%
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
%4 . — L112%
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
95
0
(Car Park within Po Pui Court) -107%
% - S .105%
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
97
0)
(Car Park within Ying Ming Court) -102%
% . - . .099%
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
99
0
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court) -096%
100
0)
(Car Park within Lai On Estate) -093%
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. (Car Park within Yue On Court) 0.085%
N (Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court) 0.083%
" (Car Park within S;u Mau Ping (1) Estate) 0.081%
a (Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate) 0.080%
o (Car Park within Yee Kok Court) 0.080%
o (Retail and Car Pa:’ll<lwithin Sau Mau Ping (I111) Estate) 0.073%
" (Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate) 0.071%
" (Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court) 0.071%
" (Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court) 0.070%
- (Car Park within Ching Wang Court) 0.069%
- (Car Park within Kam On Court) 0.068%
- (Car Park within King Lai Court) 0.057%
. (Car Park within San Wai Court) 0.056%
e (Car Park within Tin Yau Court) 0.054%
e (Car Park within Yee Nga Court) 0.054%
e (Car Park within Fung Lai Court) 0.047%
v (Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate) 0.045%
- (Car Park within Hong Keung Court) 0.044%
" (Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court) 0.035%
2 (Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court) 0.034%
121 (Car Park within Kwai Hong Court) 0.034%
e (Car Park within Pang Ching Court) 0.024%
- (Car Park within Lower Wong Ta: Sin (I) Estate) 0.019%
i (Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate) 0.013%
- (Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate) 0.008%
*
- The Quayside 5.589%%
- 700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok 2.898%
= Link Square, Shanghai 4.743%
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129 EC
0
EC Mall, Beijing 1.867%
130
0
Metropolitan Plaza, Guangzhou 2.975%
131
0
Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt Plaza, Beijing 1.594%
132
0
CentralWalk, Shenzhen 4.076%
115.766%
*
HKIS 2019 31 2019 31
2017 HKIS
RICS 2017 2017
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2019 31 2018 31
9,082 9,541
7,758,604 8,088,471
6,660 6,691
) 7,990,671 8,339,374
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
31 31 31 31 31
97.1 97.0 96.1 96.0 94.8
2017 2018 31 2018
2018 2019 31 2019 31
2019 31
883,524
457
2019
2019 31 2018 31
752 441
988 863
378,750 227,304
97.7 99.4
10
10
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®)
12 13 14
( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
12
2017 ( | 188,241|1,871,783| 135,660 (1,836,836 62.47 846 61.30 830
13
2018 ¢ | 178,594 (2,418,163 | 175,836 (2,380,819 83.06 1,125 81.78 1,107
14
2019 ¢ | 188,739 (2,555,526 | 185,775 (2,515,394 89.48 1,212 88.07 1,192
2016 12 2,494
2017 12 2,673
2018 12 10 2,759
2005 11 25
2018 77.05 1043.26
2018 10 69.50 941.03
2018 11 74.50 1008.73
2018 12 79.30 1073.72
2019 86.00 1164.44
2019 88.75 1201.68
2019 91.80 1242.97
2019 91.50 1238.91
2019 93.80 1270.05
2019 96.00 1299.84
2019 91.40 1237.56
2019 88.00 1191.52
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12
2016 2017 31 5,075 228.41
13
2017 2018 31 5,431 249.78
14
2018 2019 31 5,723 271.17
12
2016 2017 31 14.1 4.2
13
2017 2018 31 37.5 3.7
14
2018 2019 31 11.0 3.0
A B =+ Bx 100
A
B
A+ Bx 100
A
B
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®
12 1,600,140 0 31,746,000
2016 2017 31 600, 746,
2013 2018 31 1,561,196 0 64,504,500
2013 2019 31 1,407,782 0 42,145,500
2019 31 2007LTI 1,407,782

42,145,500
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2
1
2
2008
2019 24
2019 24

2,109,798,886
210,979,888

31

10
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31
@
CCASS
HKsCC CCASS
CCASS
CCASS CCASS CCASS
2
)

)
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31

)

)

)

®

80

*

31

®
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20

20

20

2019 31 42,145,500
— 1 —5 4 — 2

)
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)

HSBC

2019

31
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29

50,000,000

30



21
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@

15

0.10
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10

21

10
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viii)
(i)
2007 23
2007
—4
22
2007 LTI

(H (i)
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15
2019 31
L
S
LP
L 113,471,409 5.37
ABP Stichting Pensioenfonds ABP
JP L 80,915 L 120,308,640
JPMorgan Chase & Co. L 5,310,163
JPMC L 6,297,192 S 13,140,223
L 5.70
’ 0.62
JPNC L 39,402,381 | LP 69,217,989 LP 3.28
S 13,140,223
(L&LP)69,217,989 *
L 125,568,484 5.95
State Street Corporation
L 148,553,191 7.04
The Capital
Group Companies, Inc.
L 190,280,708 9.02
BlackRock, Inc.
S 961,000 0.04
APG N.V. APG N.V. APG N.V.
ABP APG
N.V. APG N.V. ABP
113,471,409
JPMC
25,006,215 1,400,000
4,585,000
532,740 607,500
17,880,975
4,652,858
1,451,000 638,500
212,311 2,351,047
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190,280,708
961,000
146,500
167,000
2019 31 2,109,321,254
15
2019 31
15
2019 31
2019 2018
31 30
)
63,750 - - - 57,250 121,000 0.0057 121,000
1,362,371 - - - 11,806,676 | 3,169,047 0.1502 | 3,168,847
729,781 - - - 542,126 | 1,271,907 0.0603 | 1,271,907
64,720 - - - 17,500 82,220 0.0039 82,220
- - - - 6,500 6,500 0.0003 6,500
)

4,000 - - - 17,500 21,500 0.0010 21,500
4,250 - - - 17,750 22,000 0.0010 22,000
4,500 - 12,000 - 19,000 35,500 0.0017 35,500
99,500 - - - 21,500 121,000 0.0057 121,000
15,500 - - - 21,500 37,000 0.0018 37,000
12,500 - - - 19,000 31,500 0.0015 31,500
37,500 - - - 19,000 56,500 0.0027 56,500
111,615 - - - 4,750 116,365 0.0055 116,365
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50,000
2019 31 2,109,321,254
2018
2018 13
2007 LTI
2007 LTI
2019 31
15
MTN
2019 31
MTN
2019 31 2018 30
6,296,499 0.30 8,260,908
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2019 31 HSBC 699,722
2019 31 2,109,321,254
2019 31 2019 31
CEO (000}
2019
31
405,646
93,104 247,912 28,591
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MTN 2009
The Link Finance (Cayman) 2009 Limited 2016 21 2026 2.875
500
2019 31 2018 30
Dah Sing Bank, 36,500,000 7.30 36,500,000
Limited
HSBC 35,000 0.01 40,035,000
500
MTN 2009 2014
2024 3.6 500
2019 31 2018 30
HSBC 34,171,000 6.83 109,321,000
500
MTN 2009 2011 2015
2021 2030 2.4 3.55 2,979
2019 31 2018 30
HSBC 985,000,000
2,979
2017 LTI

2017 10 2017 LTI
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2017 22 2007 LTI
2017 LTI
2007 LTI 2017 LTI
2017 LTI i
i)
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
10
10
12
12
0.1
50
50
2017 LTI

2017 LTI
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CEO
8.1 d

2017 LTI

2017 LTI 2017
10 221,456,347

12

2017 LTI

0.1
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2017 LTI

2019 31 2017 LTI

2018 2019 2019
31 31

2017 2017 14 11,250 - - - - 11,250 653 969
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 11,250 - - - - 11,250 436 646
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 10,500 - - - 10,500 367 367
2020 30

2018 2018 - 10,500 - - - 10,500 244 244
2021 30

2017 2017 14 269,075 - - - -1 269,075 12,557 17,913
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 269,075 - - - -1 269,075 9,483 13,624
14 2020 30

2018 2018 -| 518,763 - - -| 518,763 12,517 12,517
2020 30

2018 2018 -| 518,763 - - -| 518,763 9,717 9,717
2021 30

2017 2017 14 68,738 - - - - 68,738 3,208 4,576
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 68,738 - - - - 68,738 2,423 3,480
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 175,075 - - -1 1015 4,224 4,224
2020 30

2018 2018 -1 175,075 - - -1 1,015 3,280 3,280
2021 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - B 3,500 203 301
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 136 201
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 113 113
2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 76 76
2021 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 113 113
2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 76 76
2021 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 203 301
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 136 201
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 113 113
2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 76 76
2021 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 203 301
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 136 201
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 113 113
2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,250 - - - 3,250 76 76
2021 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 218 323
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 145 215
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,500 - - - 3,500 122 122
2020 30

2018 2018 - 3,500 - - - 3,500 81 81
2021 30

2017 2017 14 4,250 - - - - 4,250 247 366
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 4,250 - - - - 4,250 165 244
14 2020 30

2018 2018 - 4,000 - - - 4,000 140 140
2020 30

2018 2018 - 4,000 - - - 4,000 93 93
2021 30
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2018 2019 2019
31 31
2017 2017 14 4,500 - - - - 4,500 261 387
14 2019 30
2017 2017 14 4,500 - - - - 4,500 174 258
14 2020 30
2018 2018 - 3,750 - - - 3,750 131 131
2020 30
2018 2018 - 3,750 - - - 3,750 87 87
2021 30
2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 218 323
14 2019 30
2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 145 215
14 2020 30
2018 2018 - 3,500 - - - 3,500 122 122
2020 30
2018 2018 - 3,500 - - - 3,500 81 81
2021 30
2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 218 323
14 2019 30
2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 145 215
14 2020 30
2018 2018 - 3,500 - - - 3,500 122 122
2020 30
2018 2018 - 3,500 - - - 3,500 81 81
2021 30
2017 2017 14 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 211
14 2019 30 314
2017 2017 14 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 246
14 2020 30 314
2017 2017 14 525,243 - - -| (66,557) 458,686 21,406 30,536
14 2019 30
2017 2017 14 525,243 - - -| (67,295) 457,948 16,140 23,188
14 2020 30
2018 2018 - 569,894 - (5,288) | (25,263) 539,343 13,015 13,015
2020 30
2018 2018 - 569,894 - (5,288) | (25,263) 539,343 10,104 10,104
2021 30
1,817,612 | 2,610,964 (8,000) | (10,576) | (184,378) | 4,225,622 125,000 155,219
72.15
2019 31
243.1
76.70
19,982
2.2969

2019 31
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2019 31 2019 31
2019 31
2017 LTI
2017 LTI 20
2007 LTI
2007 23 2007 LTI 2017 22 2007 LTI
2007 2019 31 2007 LTI
15,206,402 2019 31
2,109,321,254 0.7 2017 22 2007 LTI
2007 LTI 2007 LTI
2019 30 2007 LTI
2007 LTI

2007 LTI 2018
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2007 LTI

2019 31 2007 LTI

2018 2019 2019
31 31
10
2016 2016 11 14 13,750 -1 @3,750) - - - 181 1,056
11 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 13,750 - - - - 13,750 668 1,234
11 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 178,500 - | (178,500) - - - 2,428 14,083
24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 231,000 - | 200,709) -1 0,201) - 3,979 15,421
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 231,000 - - - - 231,000 7,858 13,778
11 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 51,500 -] (51,500) - - - 701 4,063
24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 54,500 - (7,353) - (7,147) - 939 3,638
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 54,500 - - - - 54,500 1,854 3,251
11 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 4,250 - (4,250) - - - 14 335
24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 53 307
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,000 - - - - 4,000 194 359
11 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 53 307
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,000 - - - - 4,000 194 359
11 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,250 - (4,250) - - - 56 327
11 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,250 - - - - 4,250 207 381
11 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - (4,500) - - - 59 346
11 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - - - - 4,500 219 404
11 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 5,250 - (5,250) - - - 17 414
24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 5,000 - (5,000) - - - 66 384
11 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 5,000 - - - - 5,000 243 449
11 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 5,250 - (5,250) - - - 17 414
24 2018 30 1
2016 2016 11 14 5,000 - (5,000) - - - 66 384
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 5,000 - - - - 5,000 243 449
1 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 13 316
24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - (4,500) - - - 59 346
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - - - - 4,500 219 404
1 14 2019 30
2015 2015 24 4,250 - (4,250) - - - 14 335
24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - (4,500) - - - 59 346
1 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - - - - 4,500 219 404
1 14 2019 30
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2015 2015 24 5,000 - (5,000) - - 16 394

24 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,750 - (4,750) - - -] 63 365
11 14 2018 30 11
2016 2016 11 14 4,750 - - - - 4,750 231 426
11 14 2019 30
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2018 2019 2019
a a1
10
2015 2015 2% 465,828 - | w@61,079) - (4,749) - 6,205 36,376
% 2018 30 1
2016 2016 11 14 445,960 - | (z86,301) -1 (59.569) - 7,634 29,687
1 14 2018 30 1
2016 2016 11 14 441,722 - - -] @s.000)| 398,722 13,647 23,954
1 14 2019 30
2,291,010 - | @.407,782) -| a4,756)] 738,472 48,688 [ 155,496
2007 LTI
71.65
8.2
6.0881
2007 LTI
2018 13
4,750
3,357
i
5,250
1,810 ii
17,500
8,597 3,153
5,750
2019 31
10 2019 31 2019 31
11 2019 31
2007 LTI
2007 LTI
20
2007 LTI 2017 LTI
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38

59

23

103

Institute of Certified Public Accountants

13.54

193

Independent Auditor’ s Report

2019
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€))
2019 31
31
2019 2018

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
10,037 135,901 10,023 135,711
(2,348) (31,792) (2,360) (31,954)
7,689 104,109 7,663 103,757
(405) (5.484) 417) (5.646)
15(a) 12,269 166,122 35,493 480,575
15(F) 2,761 37,384 7,306 98,923
85 1,151 19 257
(598) (8,097) (665) (9,004)
10 21,801 295,186 49,399 668,862
12 (1,359) (18,401) (1,420) (19,227)
20,442 276,785 47,979 649,636
2019 (2,759) (37,357) - -
2018 (2,758) (37,343) - -
2018 - - (2.673) (36,192)
2017 - - (2,581) (34,947)
14,925 202,085 42,725 578,497
13,260 179,540 44,609 604,006
26 1,552 21,014 (2,102) (28,461)
113 1,530 218 2,952
14,925 202,085 42,725 578,497
13 20,329 275,255 47,761 646,684
113 1,530 218 2,952
20,442 276,785 47,979 649,636

92 135

13
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2019 31
) )
(
) ) ) ) )
2019 31
20,329 (18,777) 1,552 113 1,665
(236) (236) (236)
(1,316) (1,316) (1,316)
18,777 (18,777) 113 113
2018 31
47,761 (49,863) (2,102) 218 (1,884)
284 284 284
1,818 1,818 1,818
49,863 (49,863) 218 218
Q) D)
) ) ) ) )
2019 31
275,255  (254,241) 21,014 1,530 22,544
(3,195) (3,195) (3,195)
(17,819) (17,819) (17,819)
254,241 (254,241) 1,530 1,530
2018 31
646,684  (675,145)  (28,461) 2,952 (25,509)
3,845 3,845 3,845
24,616 24,616 24,616
675,145  (675,145) 2,952 2,952
92 135
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13,260

179,540

2018
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12,000,000 100
160,539,360 100
100
39,500,000 100
162,500,000 100
60
5,000 100
ECM 1,242,300,418 100
R.E. 100
HK 1,000,000 100
600,000,000 100
2019 CB 100
HK 100
100
(HK 100
287,595,000 100
2006 100
2009 100
100
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Consolidated Income Statement

Far the yaar ended 31 March 2019

X01e e
hote HES M HESM

Revenue il 10,057 W03
Propety operating Expeenies 8 {2.348) (2380)
Mt propedty noome 7,689 7563
General and adminstrative expenes {aos) {21
Change in fai valises af investment pragerties 15} 12,268 15,493
Gans on disposals of investmant propenties 1541 781 306
Interst income &5 H
Finarse Costs 9 {so8) [665)
Profit befare taxation and transsctions with Unithalders w0 .80 493949
TAEHEIoN L] {1.355) [Lazoy
Profit for the year, before trantactions with Unitholden 10,442 47579
Distribnitions paid to Linitholders:
~ JOTd interim distribution (2.755)
- 200 final dixtrbution {2,758) .
= J048 intelim dstnoution - {2673)
= 2077 final distribution = (2587
14,925 E1TIS

Represenied by
Change i net aiets Minbutable te Unitholders, exeluding miwes al new units

and unsts bought back 13,260 AL
ANt ariting flom exchange eserve and cash fow

hedgng reserve movemonts M 1,552 {217]
Kar-conroling intenesy m e

10,975 A2.735

Profit for the year, before tranactions with Linitholders attributable to

= Linitholders [Mote) I 20,329 AT 76
= Mon-controliing interest m e
10,442 avaTa

The notes on pages 92 1o 135 are an mbegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Hotes Earnings per unit, based wpon profil Tor U yes belome trarss: tons with Unithelders sttnbutsble 1o Unihokders and the sweighbed awmage nuenber of
UTHTE Y (S50 18 ST Gt R MNetE 0 Do the condahaatad finanoial SEaTementy

B Unk Fedl Estate wpyestrent frost Annual Report 2018,2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For tha year ended 31 March 2019
Afrar
Bafore Tramisctian traniactions
randactons with with MWar-
with Unithalders Unlthalders coniroliing
Unkholdoes I* i s Total
HIKS M HKS'M
For the year ended 31 March 20159
Profit for the year 20,319 {18,777 1,552 3 1,665
Qaher pompreheniive inome
e that may be reclassified wibsedusenthy
o the comsoiedatied inome statement
= Cash fiow hiddging reterse {236) - [236) - [236]
- Exchange reserve 1386y = {1315} = (1, 716)
Total comprahensive incoma for the year 18,777 (a7 - i i
For the year ended 31 Maich 208
Prafit for the year 47,761 [45.861) @nen 4 (LES4Y
Caher comprehensive income
e that may be reclassified wibseduenthy
o tha consolidated income statement

= Cash fiow hedging reserse B4 = 284 - 284
= Exchange reserve 1518 - LEna - 1,836
Total comprehenswe mcome for the year 49,853 (43.853) - Fi: 118

The notes on pages 92 10 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

HO I

Il Trarsactions with Linithplders comprise the distributions ta Unithalders of HICSS 5T7 millon (M08 HKS5.254 milics] and change in net as5ets Atnbytae 1o

Lirsthohcets, @ndhudineg (20 of new units and umitd beoght bac, of HICSTY 260 melon (2008: =05 600 milion)

{i i gccoidenc e wilh Dhe Trust Deed Uhe unils of Link Redl Extabe imvestenent Trust conlan conbied il cblgibons Lo pay bo i1 Unilhaldens cash dalributions
and aiio wpon termination of The trust, a shane of all net cash proceeds derved from the sabe o realisation of the assets of the trust bess any Rabiithes, in
Boroidiense With chey propomionate inCenss jm The trust af Ehe date of 10 Deemdnation. The Lini mokders” fundt e thensfone ciassitsd i a fnancial liahiey
rilies Lhan eoisty im socordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 1= Finsrdial imdrurments: Presentaton. Commtent wilh Unithoiden” lunds being
clasilied as a financal Kabdity, the drtnbotiors 10 Linibslders and crargs n red aseets attributabls fo Unitholders, exchuding lsioes of rew units ard units
Bought Betle are finance coft Accondingly, the total compeehensive intome, STTer the traraciions with Unitholders, s rera

254/400
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Consolidated Statement of Distributions

For the year ended 31 March 2019
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s 20ia
Rote HEE M HESM
Profit for the year, before transactbons with Unitholders
attributable to Unithalders 20,335 AT M1
Adjustments
- Change In fair wakies of imvestment peoperthes attributable 1o Uinithalden (12,157) [35,200)
= Dieferred taxation on changae in fair values of investment peopertie:
atinbutable 1o Unthokders 368
= Change in fair values of financial instruments L =
- Othir of-cash deame (BT} 1y
= Gakns on dispotals of investment properties, net of Tarsaction costs 278 (n.306)
- Depreciation chamge on mestment propertses under China Accaunting
Standdards 1503
Discretmnary drtrbuton [Note (i) 53 150
Total Distributable Amournt (Hale {]) 5723 5431
Interim gistribusion, pad 1,758 2673
Final distribGtion, 1o be paid to the Unitholden 2,564 1758
Tedal dissributions for 1he year 5713 Eax
Lirwts i i%uss &t 31 March 25 3,909, 31,254 PR LTl g
Distritnitions per unit to Unitholders:
~ Imtarim distribution pes unit, paid [MNote (i) HK 130,52 cants HE1IL50 cents
- Final dittribution per Lrik, to be paid to the Unithalsers Fiote (i) HI140.55 cents HEIZE2E cents
Distribution per unit for the year HKZ71.17 cants HEJASTE cents

The notes on pages 92 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Hotex:

i} Unger the teema of the Tnmd Deed, Link Beal Estate myestmeent Trust B requined bo distibate fo Untholcers mo et than 5% of #s distributable e ome
Tar each hinancal year. Desorbutabhe incom, acoording bo Che Tiust Deed, 15 The Group's consoidated prodil 3%be tamation attabutatee to Linitholders, a1
i Ledl Lo elernifiale the edfect of Ceftin Fan-Cash sdpatmels winth Fdte beenh fecoided i Lhe conasobdstied incomie statemenl fof (he televienl year.

iy

]

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Manager has declded 10 distribute 00% (308 800%) of ks distributanls income 1o Unitholders

I additacn, thee Manager recammended a capetal return i five form o & dagrobonmy distnibation (2093 adistment for depreciation chage on Fredtment
properies under Cheng Aot ountieg Sandscs]. Dunng the year, this Trst Deed had been reviied such (hal depmeciation changes. on invesdmenl propeitles
under Cna Accolnting Standands i no langer adjusted when deriuing totsl detrituitable n¢ome. Aotordingty, no discretiorary datribution in relation to
this acurstment is applicable, Discetionany distribition refers to any additional amoint to b distributed as detarmined by the Manager purgiant o clayse
138 of the Trust Deed Topetrey with thes dricretionany distnbition, Tolal Detrititable Amout sepresented KT (200 303%) o1 the distributable income

af Group for the year,

Thee intenm distribuion per unit of HO3G oents (2018: LSO cents) for the six manths ended 33 September 301 & cakoutated based on the intenm
rsbribvaticn of HICELTSS mikan [2008: HKCSL 671 milkon] for the pevioc and 2, MLOBGT54 units CON: Z1PLE76,472 wnila] in e it 81 30 September 2006 The

it diabribartion wiat pasd bo Unitholders on 10 December 2010

Thot Tiruad clestribution pes unit af HAOA 095 cents (2008 HEZEIE centd) for the year ended 3 March 2073 s calculsted based on the Tinal distsbutian o be
paid 1o thar Unitholders of HKS2.964 millon (2008: HICS 758 million) lo tha second Falf of the financial yoar and L1068, 3ILT54 units (3016: 215005857
L) i U as 61 30 Maioh 2080, wARGUE Taking ino BOCounT &y Change in the numbes of unils @ i5iue wibsegquent to the epproval of the censaldated

financisl seasiementd The firal detribution will be paid to Unithoitess on & july 3319

Lk Feal Estatn wvestment frust Annaal Report 208,209
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AS 2t 3 March 2019
2018
Hate Hig M
MNan-current assets
Goadwill |1 A%y A6
Imvestment properties 15 8496 030
Property. plant and eguipmaent ¥ 128 s
Derivathoe financial Instruments n i1 80
ELNG | < AL
Current aisels
Trade and cther recelvables i B3y HE
Duposits and prepayments 108 =
Darivathe financial instrumants 1 & 1
Hank deposits 1 4,095 A525
Cash and cash squevalents 18 1 654 344
T.ENA 12502
O AR e e o ... S . .. 54
Cuwrrent Habllties
Trade myyadled meoepts in advance and ool W 2,585 2462
Secunty depouls 1,751 1,655
Provizian for tacation am 420
Current portion of long-team incentive schemes poovision n w02 i
et beading lisbilites n 3367 it}
Derivathve financal instruments 2 - 3
7235
et currant (Habilities)/assets I
Total assets less current labilities 208,178
Mon-current Habilities, excluding net sssets attributable to Unithalders
Long-tenm incentive schemss providon x L 1: L
Interest meanng laoilites Fal 10,850 186
Dirreative financial instrumenty x 246 1%
Defemed tax labiities 23 M 2893
Dthes non-curment liabidities Id 5,100 3597
29,485 o
Total liabliftier, sxcluding nat aisets attributable to Unitholders AN S Al
Man-controlling interest 587 a7
Nt assets attributable to Unitholders e, 739 e Ehg
Uinits in issue » 2,900,31,7%4 2,150,058972
Mot assets per unit attributable to Unitholdars HE$ED.48 HESB3.06

The nates on pages 92 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

On behall of the Board of Directors af :
Link Asset Managemant Limited, as manager of Link Heal Estate Investment Trust

Nicholas Charles ALLEN George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
3 Juni 2019 3 Jumi 2003

Gowemancs, Disclosures and Financlal Statements 5]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

Far the year ended 31 March 2019

Mat assets
attribinakde to
Wnithodders

HIES M

ALTApN 20W@ SE0 474
Isuance of units under the 2007 LTI Flan = -
Urts. bnisghyt back for canceiltan - -
Froifit for the year ended 31 March 2019, bafore transactions

with Linithalders 20,339 - i
Casinbutions paid to Linithoigers
- 109 mtedim distribution (2. 754) - -
= A fnal deoribution [2.758) 4 =
Change in fair values of cash liow hedges 6 - (162) -
Amount trarsfemed (o the coniobdaled ingome statemrsent 26 - [Fa) -
Exchange kass on translation of financial statements 26 - {1.36) -
Amoaint anwung from aachangs nesenve and cash low hedging resenn

movements 26 (1.552) 1,552 -
Change in net assets attributable to Unitholders and non-contiioling

interest fior the year ended 31 March 2009, exchuding issues of pew units

and unsts. bought tack 13,260 - i3
At 1 March 2019 1D, TS S0 say
ALl Apnl 30T a0 580 Flo
tssuance of wnits under the 2007 LT Flan 53 - -
Uruets: borghil back for cancesilaton (&340 - -
Profi for thie year ended 1 March 2018, befone trarsactions

syith Unithalders 47T . g
Distnbutions paid to Unithalcers
= 2038 intenm distnibution (2573} - -
= 2T findl deitrbulean [FR - -
Change in fair values of cash flow hedges 26 - 195
Amount trartfenned 10 the canwobidated income LIatement 26 - 1] =
Exchange gain on tramslation of financal statemerts 26 - 1,818 -
Amount atising from exchange resevye and cash flow hedging e

ey F..d %2 [2¥32) -
Change in net assets attributable to Unitholders and non-controling intemst

Tor the wear ended T1 March 2018, exchuding lssuees of new units and units

baught back 44,609 e
AL March 208 e 554 L2g an

The notes on pages 92 to 135 are an ntegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

90 Link Resl Estate wyestrent frust Annaal Report 2078,2019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2019
2018
Hate HES ™
Oparating activities
Mt cash generated from operating activities s 5,541 B 485
Inwesting activities
Acquinition of butinesses X (7.085) [££58)
Procesds from disposals of msstment properties 15(1) 12,000 12,588
Additions to mvestment properties (2,623) [.338)
Additsons to roperty, plant and equepiment 14%) ]
Intenest inoome recened L F] 7
Dacrmaief{momase] in bank deposits with orgnal maturity of
more than three months 4,430 (R375)
Het coshgenented from Imvesting acthdties I hyTe I b L
Financing activities
Procesds from irtenes: bearing haldlites, ret ol rarsaction costs 14,804 19,585
Fepayment of mtorest bearing liabilitics {19, 124) [.345)
Increase i amalmt due 1o Ron-contraling inTensst 550 m
Inftenest expenses pad on interest bearing kakuites (648) (810
Dt burtednn pand to Uritholders {5.517) (5354}
LUinits bowgnt bedk for Gancellation {3,116 [a.345
et cash used in financing activities [13,1483) {N.961)
it [decrease)/increase in cash and cash squivalents (az2E) 4810
Cash and cash equahvaients at | Apel 3,164 535
Eflect on exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {#a) ]
Cash and cazh equivalents st 11 March 1,694 3,554

The nobes on pages 92 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Lirk Real Estate Investment Trust Link7] is a collective investment scheme authorized under section 104 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Link i governed by a trust deed entered into
on 6 Seplember 2005 (3s amended and suppiemented by 12 Supplemental Deeds dated 4 November 2005, & Movember
2003, 16 January 2008, 21 November 2006, 13 July 2007, 23 July 3007, 5 October 2009, 23 July 2010, 25 July 201Z

1B Fetruary 2014, 15 Janwary 2005 and 25 July 2018) (together the Trust Dead™).

The principal activity of Link and Its subsidiaries {the “Group?) Is investing In real estate (other than real estate of a
residentizl, hatel or serviced apartment nature) and undertaking property development and related activities in respect
of all types of developments that contain retall and/or commercial porticns. The addresses of the registersd offices of
the Manager, Link Asset Management Limited, and the Trustes, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, are
33/F, AXA Tower, Landmark East, W00 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowiloon, Hong Kong and 1 Queen's Road Central,
Homg Kondg, respectively.

Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Stamdands (HKFRS:"), the requiraments of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure requirements as set out in
Appendix C of the Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts (the *REIT Code”) issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, HKFRSS |5 a collective term which incluges all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group's current liabilities excseded its current assels: The Group considers Lhat its liguidity
and financial position as a whote is healthy and it has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adeguate
reLaurces to meel its liabidities and commitments as and when they fall due and Lo continue in opadaticnal
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordangky, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparnng the:
consolidated financial statements

(b) Accounting Convention
The consclidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of derivative financial instrumaents, investment properties and pan-controliing Interest put option
obligation, which are stated at fair values as explained in the significant accounting policies set out in Note 1

(€) Adoption of New and Revised HKFRSs

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group has adopted all the new standards, amendments and inlerpretanons
that are currently in issue and effective.

HKAS 40 Amendments Transfers af Investment Property

HEFRS 2 Amendments Clazsification and Measurement of Shure-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 4 Amendments Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revemee from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 Amendments Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HK[IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements to HEKFRSs 2004-2006 Cycle

The acoption of these new standards, amendments and interpretations has not had any significant effect on the
accounting policies or results reported and financial position of the Group.

Urk el Estate wppestment frust Annual Report 2018,2019
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

2  Basis of Preparation (Continued)
(¢) Adoption of New and Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments and mterpretations, which have been published but ane not yet
effective, have not been early adopted i the consolidated financial statements. These are effective for the Group’s
accounting periogs beginning on or after 1 April 2015

Amendments (o HEAS 1 and HEAS B Definition of Material™

Amendments to HKAS 1 Flan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement™

Amendments to HEAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures™

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Defimition of a Business®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Featuras with Megative Compensation™

HKFRS 16 Leases™

HKFRS 17 Insurance Cantracts®

HKIFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments®

Conceplual Framework for Fenancial Reporting Revised Conceptual Frameveork for Financial Beporting™
2018

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HEKAS 38 Sale-or Contribution of Assets between an Investor &nd

its Associate or Joint Ventura
Annua Improvements to HKFRSs 20152017 Cycle®

& gllective for accounting perieds bagiarérg on or after | Lnuary 201
B plfecive fon ocounng pormds begeeresg an o alter 1 nuery 2000
" ellective for scoounting peniods beginneg an of after | Enuary 204
® no mandatony sifective dace is detemmened yet but sy spplcation o permifted

The Group is In the process of making an assessment of the Impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initlal
application,

Preliminary review nated that the adoption of HEFRS 15 which may result in recognition of both an assat (the right
to wse the leased item) and a financial hability {the obligation to pay rentals) at end of the accounting periods
beginning on o alter 1 April 2008, As all the non-cancellable operating leasas of the Group are Lo be expired within
12 months from the date of initial application of HKFRS 14, the Group expects the adoption of HKFRS 16 would not
have any retrospective adjustment to the accounting periods ended on or befare 31 March 201

Save as the above, the adoption of all these new or revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group's financial performance and financial pesition but may result in new or amended disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Gowemancs, Disclosures and Financlal Statements LE]
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Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting palicies adopted in the preparation of the consclidated financial statements are set out
bebow. Save as the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs, these policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presanted.

(a)

(B)

(€)

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incarporate the assets and lisbilities of Link and all its subsidiaries as at
3 Manch 2003 and thes results for the year then ended.

Subsidiaries are entities, including structused entities, ever which the Group has control The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has nghis to, vanable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the abliity to alfect thods returns theough its power over the entity,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group, They are deconsofidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unealised gains on transactions between group companies ane
eliminated Unrealised Iostes are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset
transfemed,

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acguisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the Rabillities Incurred to the former
awners of the acquiree and the units isseed by the Group. The consideration transferred inchedes the fair value
of any asset or llabdlity resulting fram a contingent consideration arrangement. identifiable assets acquired and
[iabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
al the acquisition date, Acquisition related costs are expensed in the consclidated income statement during the
pericd in which they are incurred.

‘Where the Group enters inlo a contract that contains an obligation (for example a written put option exercisable
by the contract counterparty) to acquire shares in a partly-owned subsidiary company from the non-controlling
interest, which iz not part of a business combination, the Group reconds a financial Bability for the present value
of the redemption amount with a conespanding charge directly to equity, Changes to the value of the financial
liability are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable compenent of the Group that is engaged either in providing a particular type of
senvice [operating segment), or in providing services within a particular economic environment {gecgraphical
segment), and which is subject bo risks and rewards that are different from thase of other segments. Consistent
with the Group™s internal financial reporting to the Manager, being the chief operating decisian maker, for the
purpose of making decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance, segment assets consist
primarily of tangible assets and receivables and segment llabilities mamnly comprise operating labilities.

Foreign Currency Translation

(i} Functional and presentation currencies
Iters inchuded in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic envirenment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency’}. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong Dodlars, whech s the functional
currency of Link and the Group’s presentation cumency.

Lk Feal Estatn wvestment frust Annaal Report 208,209
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
{c) Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)
(i) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated inta the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where itenms ane re-measured, Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the reporting date exchange
rates of monetary assets and kabilities denominated |n foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
incame statement, except when deferrad in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges.

(ifi) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- a@ssets and liabilities for each statement of financial position of the Group's entities are translated at the
reporting date closing rate;

- Income and expenditures for each income statement of the Group's entitses are transiated at average
enchange rates (unhess this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenditures are translated at the
rates on the dates of the transactions): and

= all resulting currency transkation differences are recognised In other comprehensive incomse.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated a5 assets
and habifithes of the fosmsgn entity and transtated al the repornting date closing rate. Currency translation
differences ansing are recognised in other comprehensive income,

(d) Investment Proparties
A property that is held for long-term rental yislds of for capilal appreciation or both, i classified as an investment
property. It also includes properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties
Investment property comprises land held under government leases and treated under finance lrase and bulldings
hetd under finance leases.

An investment property s measured Initlally at its cest, Including related transaction costs

After initial recognition, an investment property is camied at fair value, representing open market value determined
al each reporting date, The carrying value of the investment properly 15 reviewed evesy six months and is
independently valued by external waluer at lcast annually.

Any gain or loss arising on disposal of the investment property (caliulated as the difference between the disposal
proceeds and the camying amaunt, including revaluation, of the asset) is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which the investment property is disposed of.

Chaniges in fair values of the investment properties are recognised in the consohidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 1o the asset’s carrying amount onhy wihen it is probable that future econcamic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the consalidated incame statement during the perod in which
they are incurred

Gowemancs, Disclosures and Financlal Statements a5
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Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

k-

summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(e)

(@)

(h)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumutated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atinbutable to the acquisition of the items

Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s camang amount or recognised 45 & SeDArATe 35561, 35 apprognate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the itermn can be measizred refiably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-fine method 1o allocate cost less
estimated residual value less acocumulated Impalmment losses over the estimated useful lives as foliows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years or lease terms (if apphcable)
Equipment 1to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An assel’s residual value and useful ife are reviewed and adgusted if appropate, at each reporting date.

An asset's canying amaunt B wiitten down mmediately to its recoverable amaunt if the asset’s camying amount i
greater than its estimated recoveratle amount, as an impairment loss.

Gains and bosses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carmying amounts and are
recognised in the consclidated income statement.

Trade and Other Recelvables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
less provisian for impaimment. The Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to collect

the contractual cash Nows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
Interest method The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in assessing expected credit losses which
uses 3 lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. The expacted credit losses on trade receivables are
calculated wsing a provishon matrix where a provision rate applies based an its historical abserved default rates
adjusted by curfent and fonward-lacking information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, depesits held at call with banks, other short-term highly Bguid
Investments with original matusities of three months or less and bank overdrafts

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net
wdentifiable assets of the acquined busingss at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on business combinations is stated
35 a separate asset Separately recognised goodwill ks tested annually for impairment and carmied at cost less
accumiulated impairment losses. impalrment losses on goodwill are nat reversed, Gains and losses an the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity scld. Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-
generating units for the purpose of impaliment testing.
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

M

Unitholders’ Funds as a Financial Liability

In accordance with the Trust Deed, Link is requined to distribute to Unitholders not kess than 90% of the Group's
Tatal Destributable Income Tor each financial year. The trust also has a imited life of B0 years from the date of
establishment. Accordingly. the units contain contractual cbligations of the trust (o pay Lo its Unitholders cash
distributions and also upon termination of the trust, a share of all net cash proceeds denved from the sale or
realisation of the assets of the tust less any labilities, in accoedance with thel propoftionate interests in the trust
at the cate of the termination The Unithalders’ funds are therefore classified as a financal lability rather than
equity in accordance with HEAS 32: Financial Instruments; Presentation This iabdity Is shown on the consolidated
statement of financial pogtion as the net aseets attributable to Unithalders. Distributions ta Unitholders are
recognised In the consofidated income statement

Trade Payables and Provisions

{i} Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised Initially at faar value and subsequently measured at amortised cost wsing the
effective interest method.

{ii) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is @ present legal or constructive obfigation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Where a provison is expected 1o be reimbursed., the reimbursement is recogrised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Prowisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expecied 1o be required to settie the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increéase in the provision due (o passage of time is. recognised as interest
expense,

Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rsks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the keasing company ane
accounted for as operating leases. Details of the recognition of operating lease rental income are st out in Note
3} betow.

Current and Deferred Taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it refates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is alsc recognised in cther comprehensive inCame or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group’s subsidanes operale and generate taxable imcome. Management
penodically evaluates positions taken n tax retums with respect Lo situations in which applicable tax regulation Is
subject to interprelation It eslablishes provisions where approgriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
o the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences anising between the fax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements Delerred tazation
is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and
are expected (o apply when the related defermed tax asset is realsed or the deferred Lax lizbility is setthed.
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3

98

summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

m

(m)

m)

(a)

Current and Deferred Taxation (Continued)

Deformed tax assets ane recogneted to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
agaimst which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deterred taxation is provided on temporary ditferences ansing on investments in subsidiaries, cxcept where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the tempaorary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxation ariging from investment property |s determined based on the expected manner as to how the
investment properties will be recovered (through sale or theough wse) with the carresponding tax rate applied.

Interast Bearing Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Interest bearing
liabilities are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceads (net of transaction
costs) and the regemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
instrument using the effective interest method

Impairmant of Non-financial Assats

Assets are revieveed for impaiment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances ingécate that the
carmying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recaverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair vaiue less
costs to sell and value in use Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffer impalrment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairmant at each reporting date.

Revenue Recognition

{i} Rentals from retail and commarcial properties

Cperating lease rental income i recognised on a straight-line basks over the term of the lease agreement.
Contingent rental income (representing income ever and above base rent) such as turnover rent, fs
recognised according te the terms of the lease sgreements when the amount can be reliably measured,
in the accounting pericd in which it s eamed Lease incentives provided, such as rent-free periods, are
amortised on a straight-line basis and are recognsed as a reduction af rental income over the respective
tem of the lease.

{ii) Rentals from car parks
Rentals from car parks are recognised as revenue an an accrual basis.

{ili) Service fees and charges

Sennce fees and charges such as alrconditioning income arising from the provision of services are recognised
whan such sefvices are rendened.

{iv) Intarest income
Interest income ks recognised an a time-proportion basis wsing effective interest method.
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31 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

r)

()

(s}

Expenditure

Expenditunes, inciuding property related cutgoings and other expenses, ae recognised on an accrual basis.

Employes Benefits
Emplayee benafits such as wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised 3£ an expansa when the employes has
rendered the sernvice,

Emplayee entitiemants to annuzl l2ave are recognised when they accrue to employees A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of servioes rendened by emplovess up to the reporting date.
Emplayee entitlements to sick leave and matermity leave are not recognised until the: time of leave. The employer's
contriputions to the Mandatary Provident Fund for employees are expensed as incurred

Employees” Long-Term Incentive Schemes
Incentives in the form of a lang-term incentive schemes ate provided to eligible employees (including directors).

Employee services rendered in exchange for the grant of the long-term Incentive schemes awards afe recognised
a5 an expense, with a comesponding increase i the liability incurred, This expense is charged to the consolidated
Income statement aver the vesting periads. Untll the liabdlity Is settled, the value of the liability is re-measured

at each reporting date and at the date of settlernent, with any changes in value recognised in the consolidated
income stalerment for the year, AL each reporting date, estimates of the numbser of lang-term incentive schemes
awards that are expected to vest- will be revised and the impact of the revision is recognised in the consclidated
income statement. The carrying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six manths
and is independently valued by external valuer at least annially. If the awards do not vest on the vesting dates, the
amounts charged 1o the consolidated income statement will be wiitten back,

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

A derfvative is initialty recognised at fair vaiue on the date a dervative contract is entered into and is subsequently
re-measured at its falr valee Tne method of recognising the resulting galn or loss depends on whether the
defivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if 30, the nature of the item being hedged.

At the inception of the hedging. the Group documents the economic relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions

{iy <CashFlow Hedge
Hedging relationships are classified as cash flow hedges when such relationships are used to hedge aganst
exposure to variability in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated with 3 recognised asset
or liabsdity and such variabélity could affect profit os loss

The changes in the fair value of the effective portion of derivatives that are designed and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and deferred in a cash flow hedging resenve. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consalidated income statement

Amounts accumulated in hedging reserves are transterred bo the consolidated income statement in the
periods when the hedged item alfects profit or loss. However, where the hedged item subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial ability, the gains or losses deferred in cash fiow
hedging reserve are transiemed from hedging reserve and Included within the Initlal cost of the asset or
liability.,
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summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
(s) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities (Continued)
(i} Cash Now hedge (Continued)

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the critera
for hedge accounting, any cumulative delerred galn or loss and deferred costs of hedging in the cash flaw
hedging reserve at that time remains in hedaing reserve until the forecast transactbon ocours, resulling in the
recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast transaction ks no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reparted in hedging reserve are immediately reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

{ii) Fairvalue hedge
Derivatives designated as hedging Instruments to hedge the fair value of recognised assets or Rabilithes may
quality as fasr value hedges.

The Group uses interest rabe swap conftracts to hedge its exposure to vaniability in fair values of recognised
liabilities against changes in market intanest rates.

The Group wses cross curency swap contracts o hedge its exposure to varabillty in falr value of recognised
foreign curmency labilities against changes in foreign curmency exchange rabes and market interast rates

The changes in fair values of the cross cumency swap contracts are recognised directly in the consclidated
Income statement.

Changes In the fair values of these derlvathve contracts, together with the changes in the fair values of the
hedged kabilities attributable to the hedged nisk are recogneted in the consolidated income statement as
fimance costs on nterest bearing Habllities At the same time the carmying amounts of the hedged liabllithes in
the consalidated statement of inancial position are adjusted for the changes in fair values

{iil) Hedge Ineffectiveness
Hedge effectiveness is determingd at the mception of the hedge relationship, and theough penicdic
prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged
item and hedging instrument.

The Group enters into hedge relationships where the critical berms of the hedging instrument match exactly
with the terms of the hedged item. The group therefore performs a qualitative assessment of effectiveness,
If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hedged item such that the critical terms no longer match
exactly with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the Group uses the hwoothetical derivative method
to assess elfectiveness

In hedges of foreign currency purchases, ineffectiveness may arise if the timing of the forecast transactian
changes from what was onginally estimated, or if there arse changes in the credit risk of the derivative
caumtenparty.

{t) Borrowing Costs
Bowowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or preduction of qualifving assets. which are
assels that necessarily take a substantial pericd of time (o get mady foe thelr intended use or sale, ane added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
bomowing costs are recognisad in the consoldated mncame statement in the period in wihich they are incurred.
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4 Financial Risk Management
(a) Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial reks: manket rigk including interest rate sk and curmency
risk), credit nisk and hquidity riske

Rigk management Is carmed out by the Manager, The Group's overall nsk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's fimancial
performance. The Group uses dervative financial instruments such ac intarest rate swap contracts and cross
currency swap contracts to manzge financial risk.

() Market risk

{A)

Ittt rate rish

The Group is exposed tointerest rate rick through the impact of rate changes in interest bearing
labilithes and assets. The rsks can be sepasated into cash llow interest rate risk and fair vahee intenest
rate risk.

Cash flow interest rabe risk is the sk that changes in market interest rates will impact cash flows arising
from variable rate financial instruments Borrowings at floating rates therefore expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fived
interest rale swap contracts Such interest rate swap contracts have the ecoenomic effect of converting
bornowings from floating rates to fived rates.

Fair value [nterest rate risk (s the risk that the values of financial llabilities will fluctuate because of
changes in market inberest rates. The Group manages its fair value interest rate risk by entering into
interest rate swap contracts which have the economic effect of converting bemowings from fixed rates
1o Hoating rates

The effects of the interest rate swaps on the group's financial position and performance are as lallows:

e 28
HEE'M HEEM
Carnying amcunt {asset) n a3
INoianal amanint 400 HAY
Matunty date April 2079 - August 2018 «
February 2026 February 2026
Histge ratis Lt 1]
Changs in faar vahoe of autstanding hedging Instruments
since | Apil (157 163
Changs m value of hedged item uted 1o deteimine
herige etfectiveness =7 f1&3y
Weighted average hedged rate for Lhe year 117% RO

A5 at 31 March 2009, if interest rates on floating rate interest bearing Fabilities net of floating rate
interest baaring asiets had been 100 basis paints heghsdlower with all ather varables held constant,
profit for the year, befare transactions with Unithalders, would have been HKS5S million (2018: HKS46
rrillicn] lowerhigher, malnly as a result of igher fower interest expense on floating rate borowings.
Az at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been ¥00 basis points higher/lower, the hedging resene would
have been HKS159/194 millon (2013: HES384,/407 milllon) higherower maindy as a result of an increase)
decrease in the fair values of the cash flow hedges as described above,
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4 Financial Risk Management {Continued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors {Continued)
(i} Market risk (Continued)
(B} Currency risk
Currency ritk arses on account of monetary assets and labilities denominated in a currency that fs not
the functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in Mainland China, whose net assets are exposed to forelgn currency
transtation risi. This gave rise to-an unrealised loss of approximately HKS1.316 million (2018: unrealised
gain of approximately HKS1,818 million) on translation of these operations’ net assets to the Group’s
Hong Kong Dollar reporting currency, which is reflected a5 a movement in reserves under the heading
ol exchange reserve.

The Group has meditm term notes dencminated in United States Dollars. [T uses cross currency Swap
contracts to hedge its exposune against changes in United States Dollars exchange rates. Management
theretone considers that thene are no significant currency fisk with respect to United States Dallars. As
at 31 March 2019, the Hong Kong Dollars equivalent of United States Dollars medium term noles stands
at HKST,481 milllen [2008: HK57.350 million),

The effects af the cross cumency swap contracts on the Group's financial posstion and performance ane as

Tallows:

-
HES' M
Carryfing amount (liabeities) s 138
Mobane amoust 7.7 FAan]
Maturry date Septembar 2024- Septembaer K-
July H028 Judy 2006
Hedge ratio 1= ]

Change in fair value of aut danding hedging nLtruments
snce 1Apsil {1x3) (£

Change in value of hedged item wsed to determing

hedge etfectivenass 123 35
Weightesd averagu hedged rate for tha yoar 33T% 1%
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

4 Financial Risk Management (Centinued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(1))

(iid)

Cradit risk

Credit risk anses from the potential failure of the Group's counterparties to meet thelr abligations under
financlal contracts. The Group is exposed to credit risk on Its cash and cash equivalents and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, dervative financial instruments as well as trade receivables

Credit ek is managed on a group basis The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial institutions
by imating the level of deposits to be placed with any counterparties. Deposits placed with any individual
counterparty cannot exceed a pre-defined limit assigned to the Individual counterparty. As at 3t March 2015,
all bank deposits were placed with financial institutions with extemal credst ratings of no less than BEB"

In respect of eredit exposures to lenants, credit risk exposure ks minimised by undertaking transactions with
a large number of counterpartios and conducting credit reviews on prospective tenants. The Group also has
policies in place ta ensure that rental security deposats are required Trom tenants prior 1o commencement of
leases it also has other monitoning procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken 1o recover overdug
debts In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
to ervure that adequate provisson for impasment losses is made for potentially mecoverable amcunts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk

The makimum exposure ba credit risk is represenied by the carrying amodnt of each financial asset in the
consofidated statement of financial position after deducting any impairment allowance, The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising fram trade receivables amounted ta HKSTN million (2018 HKS106 million) and is set out

in Note 17, The Group's exposure to credit risk ansing from cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
amaunted ta HKSE, 780 millian (2018: HKS1,680 milkon) and |3 26t out in Mote 18 The Geaup's exposurs to
credit risk arising from desivative financial instruments amounted to HES42 million (2018: HKS281 million) and is
et out in Note 22

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding from
committed credit facilities and operating cash Now.

The Group has cash and cash equivalents and bank depasits of HKSE, 789 million (2018: HKS11LE8D miliion) as at
31 March 2019, In addition to the cash resources, the Group has total available borrowing facilities amounting
to HKSI3 75 milkon (2018: HKSIT, 285 million), of which HKS24 545 million (2018; HKS26.285 milllion) was
drawen as at 31 March 2019, The undrawn committed facllities, in the form of bank loans, totalled HKS9,330
million (208: HKST,000 million) as at 31 March 205,
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104

Financial Risk Management {Continued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors {Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remalning pertod at the reporting date to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed In the table
are the cantractual undscounted cash Mows which comprise both interest and principal cash flows.

Between
Lets than Tand 2
1 yamr yRan
HES™ HKE"M
At ¥ March 2049
Trade payables and accruals 2,300 - - -
Secufity denosits (1] 410 &1 ]
Intenest beanng lablities 4m 3,590 7,06 15,070
Desivatie firun lal indtrumants (net tettied) 9 w =9 e
Amcaunt dise to non-tontrolling interast - - 16824 -
Ron-controling inbenest put opbon
obbgaticn = = 965 -
Retention amourt for a acqusition of a
DLrsInets = 758 = =
Uritholdars funds - - = 188,739
At 1 March 208
Trade payables and accruais 27 - - -
Secunty depoits =) %4 525 H3
Intevest bpanng Habdites 3257 461 G ERE 12,316
Devivatine financial instruments (net settied) 2 5 133 247
Amount duwe to non=contiolling interes = - 30 =
Hon-controfing infenest pul opon
abibgation - - a0 -
Uritheldess' funds - - - .50

(b) Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concerm
whilst seeking to maximise benefits to Unitholders.

The Group monitors capatal on a regular basis and observes the REIT Code's maximum gearing ratia of 45%. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings (including current and nan-curment borrowings) divided by total asset value as

shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
Fatl
HESH

IntEnest bEasing Ratil s (Note 2) 43T 15785
Tetal asost value 236, 557 G 404
Geanng mtio WLTH 1%
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4 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{c) Fair Value Estimation

(]

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

HEFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurement by three levels of fair value measurement hierarchy.
The lellowing table presents the Group's assets and Nabilithes that are measured at {air value:

Level . Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lizbilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the azset or liability,
glther directly {that is, as prices) o indirectly (that 5, desived from prices)

Level 2 Inputs for the asset or liabdlity that are not based on observable market data (that is, uncbservable

Inputs).
Lewvel 1
HEEM

AL March 2019
Ausely
IVt plopertes - - Fal K10 B, a%6
Dertvative finarcial instruments - 42 - 42
Tatal assets - 42 218,496 T8, 538
Liabifar
Derreathve finarcal instrumenty - 146 - 246
Non-contreling interest put option

aibligatsan - - T 50
Tl kabdiickes - a6 0 1,036
it 31 March 206
Assete
IFvestment properies - - 03,0 203,00
Derivatie financal Instruments - m - ol
Tatal assets - Ia 205,00 203371
Lianines
Derfvative financial instruments - m - £V
Mon-controling interest put option

abiigation B 700 700
Tatsl isbdities - i 0 a7

There were no transfers between these three levels dunng the year (2018: Nilj.

There is no offsetting arrangement between the Group's financial assets and financial Rabilities.

The ﬁmup‘s policy 15 to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy kevels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer,

Fair value disclosure

The canying values less impairment provishon of trade receivablies and the cammying values ol trade payables,
accruals, bank deposits and short-term interest bearing liabilities are a reasanable aporoximation of their fair
values due to thelr short-tem matwities

The fair values of long-term intenest beanng lizbiities are based on market prces or are estimated by using
the expected future payments discounted at market interest rates.
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10

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, It also requires the Mznager to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are befieved Lo be reasonable under the circumstances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the futura, The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seidom equal the related actus results. The estimates and assumplions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adustment to the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year are discussed below,

(a)

()

(<)

(d)

Investment Properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined at each reporting date by independent
valuer bazed on & market value assessment. The valuers have relied an the discounted cash flow analysis, income
capitalisation approach and residual approach as thelr primary methods, cross-referenced to the direct comparison
methad where appleable. Details of the valustion technigues and assumplions have been distlosed in Note 15,

Financial Instruments

In estimating the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses valuation technigues such as deaker gquotes
and discounted cash fiows, The Group also makes 25sumplions that ane based on manket conditions existing at
each reporting date.

Long-term Incentive Schemes Valuation

The value of awards granted s estimated based on valuation techniques and assumptions on unit prices,
outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out rates and ather market conditions, which management
considers as representing the best estimate of the value of the liability for such awards at the reparting date, The
carrying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is independently
valued by external valuer at least annually.

MNon-controlling Interest Put Option Obligation

The fair value of the non-controlling interest put option obligation is determined at each reparting date by
independent valuer based on a market value assessment. The valuer has used discounted cash flow as the
waluation technigue, The valiation fs based on vanous assumplions, inchuding the estimated fair value of the equity
interests of the non-wholly owned subsidiary at the expected time of exercise of the put option, the expected
time of exercise iteell, the cash flow and the discount rate used Details of the valuation technigus and assumptions
have been disclosed in Note 24,
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)

(2) Goodwill
Goodwill Is recorded a3  separate asset and it is subject o an annual impalsment test. The tests undertaken as at
31 March 2008 and 2019 indicated that no impairment provision was necessary.

For the purposes of impairment tests, the recoverable amount of goodwill i determined based on the cash flow
projections Inherent in the valuation of investment properties by the principal valuer. Judgement was required 1o
determine key assumptions for adoption in the cash flow projections, such as income and expenditure growth
rates, discount rate, income capitalisation rate, etc The income and expenditure growth rates were driven by the
feracast occupancy rate, reversion rate, progress on asse! enhancement projects and inflation. The discount rates
and income capitaiisation rates stated in Note 15 were used in the cash flow projections,

Revenue
Revenue recognised during the year comprises:

1019 28
HES'M HES M

Rentals

~ Hetad and commedclal propstey 1648 7554

= Car parks 1979 LDdE

Othesr peianise

= Air conditioning service fees us 375

= Oty property related rovenue L3 4B
anh 41

2rzsszszssscsssssssssssssssssssarsssssssssossisssssssssaszrsssssasisToy pitiiisosssosasssssoser gissSssssassossssnsassy

Total evene 10,037 W3

Leases with tenants provide foar monthly bate rent and recavery of certain outgaings Additional rents based on businass

turnaver amounted 1o HKS133 million (208: HES152 millkan) and have been included in the rental incame,
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Retall
proEertias
HESM
For the year anded 31 March 3019
Remnue 7857 1982 10,037
Segmient retults 5672 1,508 (96) 7,284
Change in fair values of irvestment peopetes B.358 310 n 12,269
Gains on diposals of investment properties 1781
IterBLt iIncams w5
Finance costs {5598)
Prafit bafore tavation and tramsactions with Unithalders .80
Taxation {1,355)
Prodic for the year, befone vanmactons with Unitholders 20,442
Capital sxpendifure .09 a4 1,588 13,501
Depreciation )] = (1) 22}
A st M March 2009
Segment asseis 166,234 FLME F 18,307 21673
Goodwil 4313
Dertvative financial irstruments. 43
Hank depasits 4,055
Carth and cath sfunaents 2,694
Total assets 226,537
Segment Rabeties 1.980 143 113 4,335
ProwiLion for tacatian n
Long-term incentive schemes provision o0
intefest beanng liabilities 14,117
Derivative financlal imstrurments 146
Deforred tax fabildaes 3.9
Onher nan-current labiaies 5,100
Tl lishilities, eweiudivag ret s1oets sitribatabie
fo Umithalders 7 EN
Man-controlling infeses sa7
Met assets attnbutable 10 Unithalgers Vo&, 3%

Far the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue aof HKS1,026 million (2018: HKSA34 million) is attributable to extemal
customers from Mainland China and HE 52,011 million [20018; HK4$9,138 milicn) is attributable to extemal customers from

Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2079, speciiied non-current assets (which include invesiment properties, property, plant and equiprment,
and goodwill) of HK28,956 milbon (2018: HKS18,469 millan) is located in Maintand China and HKS190,11 million (2018

HES185,153 millson) is located in Hang Kong.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 Segment Information (Continued)

Retw
PIOpETTES T parks 0thars Total
HESM HES LA HEE™M
For the year enced 31 March 2018
Reverue 7638 1051 i3 il ]
Segment nesuRs Lao? 1572 (23 7246
Change in fair values of investment properties 7304 T.552 By 35493
Gainz on disposals of imvestment properties 1306
ImEnes incame 5
Fimdnce costs {eti5)
Prafit hefare taxation and transactiaons with Unitholders. A5
Taxaticn {4200
Prafit lor the year, before Urarsactions with Unitholders 47573
Capirnl axpandifurs ;NG .8 | 701
Depreciation - = ] (20)
A ar-3Y klasch 2008
Segment assels 151841 M5 16,598 204,008
Goodwill 413
Derbvativn financial instriments bi-i}
Bank deposits a535
Cash and eash equivalents 3,564
Totsl atssts 216,404
Segment kabilithrs L5585 149 a1 A7
Prowigion fof taxation 420
Long-tarm incentive schemss provision 137
Interest bearing Rabil ves 25,785
Duerivatios fenanclal Instruments m
Dwformed fax liabdities 1893
Oithes non-cunrent lisbslities 3547
Total Fanilitees, exchiding net asety stirbutabie
to Linithaddars ErkE
Ron-conbralling interes a74
et asses aitnbutiable 1o Unihoiders R34
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 Property Operating Expenses

e
HESMA

Froperty managert {ees, secunty and cleaning 570 L1
Staf costa 535 4TS
Hepall and maintenance il o4
itiities FeL an
GorvErmmant fent and rmees am RE
Framotion and marketing experses W e
EsLate common anea oosls ] 0
usiness and real estate taxes in Mainland China T4 ]
Caher propeity OPErating expenses s 156

2348 2360

9 Finance Costs

Inierest axpaEnges o inlerest lﬁi‘!"ll] sl lilses
Other bonmowing costs (Note (1))

Faw value loss on non-controling interest put option obligation (Nate 24)

na
T2
THE
Less capitaltsed wnder investment prapertses (Nate (17} {278) {12€)
S0@
99
598

Motow

0 Other borrowing costs include HESHE milkon (209 HICSEE milicn) necest expenses (o non-controling interest, K574 million (208: HLSES milion
PR WorkEa) P (GANG o FMENEST TR Tual CONRIFCTY (esirad el &4 Cash Mo hedges, I3 mikioe (08 HKST millon] ned Qaing o Cross oumenty
wap contracly and mleseil rate swiap conlracts oeugnaled a Tail value hedges and vanous banking and fmancng chisges

(il Interest espenses have been capiiafised under nvement properties st 0 sverage imterest rite of 30% (2088 18%) per annum.
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

10 Profit Before Taxation and Transactions With Unitholders
Profit belaore taxation and transactions with Unithalders for the year is stated after tharging:

Staft costs (Rote 17) T&r
Depreciatian of piopety, plant and sqiipmient 20
Trustes's fee 18
Waluation fee &

ALSTOrs remuneration

ﬂEnE:Iuh w:ﬂ!!
&
z

Audit and audit:related assurance sanvices |
Acquistion relaled professonal {ees L]
Dt F
Total auditor’s remunegration & i1
Hank £hatges 3
Commission to property agents 362
Dorutiom g
Exchange (gain)foss [EL] 56
Operating lease chamges EL3 35
Other legal and prafessionsl fess 6 1
1 Staff Costs

208

HiES™

Wages and satanes s TIB
Contributions to randatary phovident fund dchems (Note [1)] 14 b1
Long-term incenkive schemes awards {hate 20) a 126
202 ESD
L capitabsed under investment propeties 3 o
Stall costs (Note 10] 830 Ter

Rabes:

] The Gicup opetales a pension stbeme -~ Mandatonys Provedent Fand. The scheme s @ delined conbribition plan funded (fecugh paymnents to
trunies-admintstered funds A defined contribution plan 5 @ pension plan ungey which the employer pays fed conbributions info a separate
ntity (a fund). The Getun hue no further payment obliga lans once the contrioutions have been paid
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Taxation

Heng Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 165% (2018: 165%) on the estimated assessable profit fos the

wear. Corporate income tax in Mainland China has been provided for at the applicable rate on the estimated assessable
profit lor the year.

The amount of taxation charged to the consclidated income statement represents:

Foi). ) bl
HES M LS

Curmpnt taxation
- Hareg king 850 B0
= Mainland China m r
Deferred tasation 18 A5
Tawation 1355 1440

The differences between the Group's expected tax charge, using the Hong Kong profits tax rate, and the Group’s
taxation for the year were & follows:

HIES 1
45390
8151
I
80
(000
(a7
(28]

2

Profit betore Ladation

Expecied tax calcwiated at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of 15:5% [2018: 1.5%)
Tax efiect of diferent taaation rates

Tax eflect of nan-deductibie expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable incoma

Tax effect of other temposary dif femences

Utilsation of previcusly unnecognised tax loss

Withholding tax on unmemitted samings of wbtidaries

g uggguﬁg ';!
g

Taxatan 1420

13 Earnings Per Unit Based Upon Profit for the Year, Before Transactions With Unitholders

Attributable to Unitholders
] o

Prafit for the year, belore rransactions with Unithalders actrisutable

o Unithalders HK%20,329 milllon HE547 761 million
Wieighted average number of units for Ehe year for caioulating base eamings

par unit 2,135,852,061 17199.555, 086
Adgastment for diluliee contengently msuatle unils under fong-lerm ncenlne

schames 482,173 LOI85T
‘Wieighted average number of units for the year for calculating diluted eamings

Pef urit L AR6, 334,234 2201585662
Banic eamings per unit based upon profit for the year, befone transections with

Unithalders attributable (o Unitholders HK49.56 HERIN
Diluted eamings pay unit based upon profit for the yeat, belore trarsactions with

Unithalders attibitable 1o Unitholders HK$9.56 HES 169
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

14 Goodwill

01 208

HIS'M HIE

At1Aprl L3l S6E
Eachangs agjusimenti {13) o
Acgisutan of bubresses (Note 28) a3 15
Dispasals ) ]
At 31 March 433 Al

15 Investment Properties
(a) Details of the movements of investment properties are as follows:

Completed Praperty under
developmant
LM
AL 1 ApHl 208 194,358 B3 208,091
Excharge adjistmants (Mote (=]) ) = {1.270)
Acguisition of businesses (Nole 2E) 0,663 - 10,663
Additions 1m 1.522 2,011
Dispasals (hate (1) {m.090) - {9.090)
Change i far valies 96 I53 12,269
At 31 March 2009 207,948 10,548 i, a56
At T April 2012 166,657 A 74,006
Excharge adjustmen:s 172 - 1762
Acquiution of business 4580 - 4,580
AQmbiong L5374 88 L4
[upanaly {15158 - (51523
Change i Tir valises 3937 556 15493
AL March 208 104,358 BTN 203,091
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Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15

4

Investment Properties {Continued)
(b) Valuation process

(€)

The investment properties were revalued on 2 manket value basis as at 31 March 2018 and 2019 by Jones Lang
Laballe Limited, an independent firm of professional qualified valuers and the principal valuer of Link.

The Manager held discussions with the pancipal valuer and reviewed all significant inputs used by the principal
valuer. Discussions of the valuation processes and results at each reporting date are held between the Manager
and the principal valer.

Valuation techniques
The principal valuer has relied an the income capitalisation approach, discounted cash flow analysis and residual
aApproach a5 its primary aporoaches, cross-relerenced 1o the direct comparnson method

The income capitafisation approach is based on the capitalisation of the current passing rental Income and
patential reversionary income of the property from the date of valuation at appropriate investment yvields to
arrive at the capital value. The appropriate adjustments/deductions for rent-free period, ongoing vacancy voidsy
marketing pesods and naon-recoverable experses for the vacant space have been aflowed,

The discounted cash flow analysis requires pericdic net cash flows to be forecasted over the e of the investment
and discounted at a risk-adjusted opportunity cost of capital to arrive at a present value, The discounted cash flow
analysis takes into consideration the yearty net cash flows after deductions for expenditure, and having regard

o the assumptions made relating to rental growth projections, vacancies, rent frees, replacement resenve, non-
recoverable outgoings and leasing costs The discounted cash flow analysis iIncorparates an assumed 10-year
halding peniod and the reversionary value in Year Eleven, discounted by an appropriate discount rate to denve at 3
et present value,

The rasidual valuation method invalves firstly the assessment of gross development value, which is the value of the
proposed development, as if completed, at the date of valuation Estimated outstanding cost of the development
Including costs of construction, professional fee. finance costs and associated costs, plus an allowance for
developer's nisk and profit are deducted fram the gross development value. The resultant figure is the residual
value.

Lk Feal Estatn wvestment frust Annaal Report 208,209
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

15 Investment Properties (Continued)
{¢) Valuation techniques (Continued)
The three valuation techniques are summarised in the below table with thedr respective significant unobsernvable

inputs
Relationship of significant
Significant unobaervable inpati irnabserdable Inputd to [akr value
Income capltalisation approach
Completed peopemes — etal and 1 Capitaliation rare (Blended); THe Rugher the captaisation rate, the lower
commercial properties and car paks 100 = 4.75% (RO 100% - 475%) the fair value
W Nt passng Moome per annus T hagher the rist parsing income, the
HESIEM - HE 536040 higher the far value
(3018 HESO.5M = HECSIEELOMA)
Dscaunted cash flow analysis
Compheted propeies - retal and 1 Discourt tate e hughet thee disoount rate, the lower the
commercal propertees and car patks T25% - B50M (2008 T25% - TT5W) far valua,
4 Met PIF5ING NCOTE DT 3FNWTE i highar the ret PrSare]) Ireceumi; the
HELOERM - HY 16040 higher the fair value
(2018 HKS0 S = HRCSIEA0M)
Rusldual approach
Property wnder developmunt Evtmated development conls and Trwr hagher the estimated deveiopmunt

aligwance for devaloper's itsk and prodfit costs and aliowance for developes's sk
and peol, the bower the lair value

The investment properties are included in Level 3 (2018: Level 3) of the fair value higranchy,

(d) Restriction of the REIT Coda
Link acquired 77 Hoi Bun Road in Kewloaon East for commercial developrment, Metropolitan Plaza in Guangzhou,
Beiiing Jingtong Roosevelt Flaza in Beijing and Central\Walk in Shenzhen, the completion of which were on
23 Februany 2015, 1 May 2077, 23 January 2019 and 14 March 20019 respectively, and the commercial development of
T7 Hol Bun Road was not yet completed as at 31 March 2085 In accordance with the REIT Code, Link ks prohibited
from disposing of its propertles for at least two years from elther the time such properties are acquired of the
dates of the completion of the development of the properties, unless the Unithalders approved the proposed
disposal by way of special resolubion passed In accordance with the Trust Deed.

() Exchange adjustments
The exchange adjustment s attributable to the Group's investment properties in Mainland China of RMB2&,702
milliion (2018: RMB14,629 milkon) a5 a result of the depreciation of Renminbl This transtation difference is included
In exchange resense as set out in Note 26

{f) Disposals of investmant propertias

Cn 13 March 2019, Link completed the disposals of 12 investment properties at an aggregate consideration of
HES12, 010 million, and resulted in gains on disposals of HKS2,761 millan,

(g) Security for the Group’s loan facilities

Cn 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's investment properties, amounting to approximately HKS10,701 million
{2008 Mil), were pladged 1o secure Groug's Ioan lacilities of HKS2,580 mallion [2008: Nif),
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Moter
vahlcles Exquipment
HHEW S

AL 1 Aqril 2018 i+ 2 m ns

AcTions & 1 i a5

Depemciation charge far the year = i [il:H] {21}
At 11 Masch 301 L] E m 34

At 11 March 300

Coat 1] & F2] £ 2|

Aocumulated depraciation (65 L] (34} {z03)
et book value 5 3 138

AR 1 Aql 2017 i | ] i1 E7

Aoguidean of busness L £ 1 1

Addsions g 1 & &

Oieperialy - - M m
Depenciation chame for the year 4 - i} {3
AL 31 Maech 2018 7 2 L k]
At 31 March 20E

O E -1 m 7
Aooumlated depreaation 21 ) ) e
Mt book value 7 i Lol n5
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

17 Trade and Other Receivables

e 2008

M W HESM

Trade recehabies " 2
Less proviskon for imparment of trade iecenables (& (4]
Tridea reoeiy ADES - nel m 06
Other recerraldes |22 09
933 s

The carrying amounts of these receivables approximate their fair valees

There are no specific credit terms given to the tenants. The trade receivables are generally fully covered by the rental
deposits/bank guarantees from comespanding temants.

The ageing of trade recelvables, presented based on the dus date, is as follows:

2078

HES™

0=30 days 105 00
31-90 diys 7 6
Crver G0 days 5 B
wr ni

Monthly rentals in respect of retail and commaencial propefties are payable in advance by tenants in accardance with the
heases while dally gross receipts from car parks are received from the car park operatoes in amears Included in the net
trade recelvables of HESTH malion (2018 HKS106 million) presented above were HES80 millicn (2018: HES55 mallion) of
accrued car park income and HKS23 million (3018: HKS3 million) of accrued turnover rent, which wene nat yet due as at
N March 2009,

Movemants on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

A1 e 1 4
Pravision for imparment of trade recevables 4 i
Receivables wiitten all during the year & uncoliectible {a) [ Fil
At 31 March ] E

The creation and refease of provision for impalrment of trade recelvables have been included in property operating
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the provision account will be written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash

The ather classes of receivables included in Lhe trade and olher receivables do nol contain impaired assets
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of trade receivables
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Fiol ] e

HES W HES M

Carth at bank 1,955 o
Bank depasits with anginal maturity of It than theee manths 7i9 2454
Cah and cash equiveients 2,604 3164
Hank deposits Mutﬂlﬂlﬂil maturity o mone than thiee months 4,085 8535
6,789 &89

18 Trade Payables, Receipts in Advance and Accruals

wnn Firl:]
HES ™ HESM
Trade payables 153 L
Seceupis in advance i 245
Acciuahi 2,308 2080
2,588 2463
The carrying amounts of these payabies approcamate their fair values.

The ageing of trade payables, presented based an the due date, is as follows:
2018
HES M
O-30 days e =¥
-5 days ] ']
et 50 darys 5 1
152 157
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

20 Long-Term Incentive Schames Provision

il ] 208

HIE'™ HEES ™

Lang-tarm incentive schemes provition 100 W
Less: current paian of lang-teem mcent v schemes provison [*03) 1B
Mon-curfent pertion of long-Temm incentive schames provivan E1] 50

2007 LTI Plan

A long-term incentive plan (the "2007 LTI Plan®) was adopted on 23 July 2007 and expired on 22 July 2017 after being in
operation for 10 years. After its expiry, no further awands shall be granted under the 2007 LTI Plan. Nonetheless, awards
granted and accepted prior to its expiry but yet to vest shall continue to have effect and be governed by the rufes of
the 2007 LTI Pan

Under the 2007 LT Plan, the Manager might grant three types of awards - restricted unit award, unlt option and
conditional cash award - to directors and key employees of the Manager. No unit option has ever been granted under
2007 LTI Plan since its adoption up tll expiry.

For those restricted unit awards granted with perfformance goals, the eventual numbers of new units to be issued to the
relevant grantees an vesting are inked io the performance of Link in terms of total Unithelders return ("TUR') and net
property income (NP or certain vesting conditions, Conditional cash awards are granted in conjunction with restricted
unit awards, bestowing upon each grantee a conditional right to recelve a cash payment representing an amaunt
equivalent to the aggregate af the distributions during the vesting period.

During the year, the Growp issued 1407, 782 units (2018: 1,561,196 units) for restricted unit awards which have vested in
accordance with the 2007 LTI Plan

2017 LTI Schema

On %0 luly 2017, Link adooted a new long-tem incentive schema (the “2007 LT Schema’). Under the 2017 LTl Scheme, the
Manager may grant restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards to directors of the Manager and key employees
aof the Graup.

During the year, certain directors and employees of the Mansger weste granted restricted unit awards and conditional
cash awards at nil monetary consideration under the 2017 LTI Scheme. The restricted unit awards granted under the 2017
LTI Scheme, in general, will vest approximately twe 1o three years from the date of grant. Under the 2017 LTI Scheme,
umits will be purchased in the grantees’ favour from open stock market to satisfy restricted units awards vested. For
those restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of units to be purchased in each
grantee’s favour upan vesting are linked to the performance of Link based an the TUR, NPl ar certain vesting conditions
Conditional cash awards were also granted in conjunction with the restricted unit awasds, bestowing upon each grantee
a conditional right to receive a cash payment representing an amount equivalent to the aggregate of the distributions
during the vesting period.

During the year, the Group purchased 8,000 units (2018: Nil) from the market for restricted units awards which have
vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI plan.
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Long-Term Incentive Schemes Provision (Continued)
During the vesting penod, 3 Hability is recognised representing the estimated value of the awards granted under both
‘thee 2007 LTI Plan and the 2017 LTI Scheme and the portion of the vesting period expired as at the reparting date. The
value of the awards was estimated at the reporting date by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent
extenal valuer based on valuation technjgues and assumplions on unit prices, cutstanding length of the awards,
distribution pay-oul rates and otber market conditions, if appropriate. The change in value of the outstanding awards
was charged to the consolidated income statement. In the event that the vesting conditions are not met, the amount
previously acerued will B written back accordingly.

Mevements in the nember of restricted unit award during the year and the maximum number of wnits to be issued upon
vesting of restricted unit award are as follows:

Granted st s Outibeding
during Suring nn
Gt o grast Wit lag pulod = ek 0N
07 L) Plan
I ity M6 Ik oty 20 b 30 Jume 206 W - I T - L] -
o Newerae 108 Wl Bucraermbend 20°5 10 00 A 20 LHrL 4] £ ] [l o = L) -
W bt 257 b 0 e 20 Lo - - - [ ey 15514
TITATI P wbete Lig 00 - s, ) - [, Daj ki
TP L) Sichwmi
24 Jay 200 8l 207 1 30 g 200 A0 [0} - [ 1nt) FT
B ety 20T 10 30 e 2200 A0 - [4820) - (] 180,345
&y 2 & Jely 278 4 30 B 200 - s - ek ] o, 7ech 554
4 oy 0 5 30 M 211 - b B L 5,752 et
ST L Scherme bt 26000 L1900 LA (4,500 [PRASE) 1884, 0
L Lo 0 L184,000 e, ) [e.500) [ o] 115
kil Lt v et 100G of miicied ura
] fFasies - - [om 88T - - -
S stal LU LT 48,78 4,560 106, 545) 11118 B84
e 1o r | b1k g R LEELIEG) i 23354 bl o AL
Mot

[ Restricted uni award vesting percentages during the Year anged from 100% 10 200%
() o cermain v ing condimon ane met
() Addilions ety oves I00% of eatricted Ui awand gfanted were veibed poriant bo the relevant vestng conditans.
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Interest Bearing Liabilities

Fioiid 18

HIE'™ HEES ™

Unsecurad bank bancnwings 6,732 5532
Secured bank borowings 2,580 =
Wi termn nates 14,505 15,853
24,217 25,785

Less: cument panion of intergst beanng liabilities (2.367) [2.555)
Mon-cument portion of interest bearing kabilitees 20,850 FEEL)

Interest bearing liabilities are repayabie as lollows:

e 208
HES'M HES M
Due in the first year
Unisecured bank botmowings LR 1458
Setuned bank bomowings 63 -
Medwm term nates 1,306 10791
) ) . 1367 158%
Due in the second year
Urnecured Bank bedrewings a0 ans
Secumd bank bomowings b ] -
Medum terin hobes 350 136
1,934 £035
Drue bn thee thivd year
Urniacuied Bank bomowings 1,030 Fda4
Secured bank Dorowings 128 -
Moedmum Egrin notes 1,438 345
__________________________________________________________________________________________ ol L e L
Dt bn thve fourth year
Ursecuresd bark bomowings 97 250
Secuted bank borowingy 160 -
Madium term nates 1216 1436
Due in the fifth year
Ursecured bank bomowings L3l 95
Secured bank borowings w5 -
Medium term nates - 1245
- - m
Due beyond the fifth year
Urmsecured bank bodmowings - 415
Secured bank Bomowings 1961 =
Medium term notes 0,505 w436
12,548 w051
2.7 25785
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Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n

Interest Bearing Liabilities {Continued)
LT

il Excent lof medum term notes af HEST 481 million (2018 MEST.350 million) which ane dencririted in United Seates Dodlars and bank bomawings of
HES2 580 mllion [2018; W) which ans dencrrarated in Renmindl, all the oty inbemst bearing Kabilities ane dencminaled in Hong Korg Dollars

[ Al of Link's bomowings denominated in United States Dollars am fully hedged inbo Hong ong Dollars.

{ii} The effective interest rate of the interest Dearing lakdities whick are dencenirated in Hong Koeg Dollars and Uinited States Dollar (1aking info

SOCiUNT citad (Ui S COFTERC 14 and irtenedl rale swiap oof tiacts) at the repaiting dabe vees 112% [2018: 2ROW) snd that of the Rbeieit
earing haksitres which are denomirated in Rermrrb wan 5 7% (2008: bl

W] Subseduent 10 the financial yesr ended 31 March 2075, the Group has ssied convertible bonds of HiS4 Billion at 16% pe anum dus 724 Trese
onds sre CoNMvETiie mbn new Link et ab an el corersion pege of HESI0908 per unit

22 Derivative Financial Instruments

i) ] e
H4BA HOSRA

Disriwative assels
Current [tem
Designated as fair value hedge
= Interest rale Swap contracts . . ] 1
Hon-current items
Dssignated as cash flow hedge
= interest rate Swap contracts 15 250
Dwgnated a4 lair value hedge
= CICHS CUMRNCY SWap contract n i)
= terest rate SWwap contracts - 1
kL] 280
L+ =m
Derlvative labliltdes
Cument item
Designated as cash flow hedge
= INteresT rate Twap contracts - 1
Hon-gusrart itams
Devgnated as cash flow hedge
- INCETeST Ia0e SwWap COnFacts 7 ]
Dasgnated as fair valus hedge
— £NErd CuMency Swap contrcls il 15
= interest rate swap contract 3 0
245 s
a8 in
104 o6
Haotex

{0 Phe ke values of Prancisl insEnaments that ane nol braded e an sl markel ate delosmined by ueng valistion tedmgues. Thede valastion
fechnigues masimise the use o obeervabie marbet data where & b5 available and refy & itle a3 possible on entiy specific extimates # all significant
Inpa s feuine 0o B ValIE AR EnSTTUmSnT dre boarvabie, the nTrumens [ inciuded i bl 2 ol 1he (aie vaiee hasraerhy.

{if) - The lair walues of oo (urrery swap Conlrecls and intetesl fabe swap conlfacts & calculated by reberence b Ehe present valoss af e estimeted
future cash fiows, taking into sccount market chservalie yvield curvesd and forward exchange rates ol each reporting dube. Crody cumency swap
coriracts and irtenest rabe Swiap contracts ame incheded in Level 2 (2018: Level ) of the falr value herarchy,

Lk Feal Estatn wvestment frust Annaal Report 208,209
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

22 Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)
The Group uses crass cumency swap contracts (swapping from foceign currencies to Hong Kong Dollars) and interest rate
swap contracts to minimise its exposure to movements in foreign cumrency exchange rates and inberest rates in relation
Lo its interest bearing lkabilrties. The fair values of these Cross cumency swap contracts and inlerest rate swap contracts
are classified as mon-current items showld the remaining maturities of the hedged items extend for more than 12 months
Any change in fair values of the effective portion of the cash flow hedges in relation Lo nterest rate swap conlracts is
recognised in the hedging reserve. Any change in fair values of the fair value hedges in relation to interest rate swap
contracts and any change in fair value of cross currency swap contracts are recognised directly in the consolidated
Income statement. A net amount of HK5236 millon (208: HKS284 million credited) had been debited to the hedging
reserve during the year as lurther set out in Note 26,

A5 at 31 March 205, the derivative fmancial instraments qualifying as cash flow hedges have, in effect, provided the
Gieup with an average fixed interest rate penod of 358 years on HKSE 000 million barrowings (2018 4.3 years on
HEKS10,000 milkion borrowings) from the reporting date. The notional principal amount and the weighted average fed
mterest rate af the outstanding floating rates to fixed rates interest rale swap contracts as at 31 March 2009 were
HKSE,000 million (2018: HKS$10,000 million) and 182% (2008; 1.74%) respectively. The notional principal amount of the
outstanding floating rates to floating rates interest rate swap contracts as at 31 March 2019 was HHS.!,DO-G millicn {2018:
56,500 million).

Az at 31 March 2019, the derivative financial instruments qualifying as fair value hedges have, In effect, converted part
of the Group borrowings into Hong Kong Dollars fixed rate and floating rates interest bearing liabilities. The noticnal
principal amounts of the outstanding cross currency swap contracts and interest rate swap contracts qualifying as fair
value hadges as at 31 March 2009 were HKST 752 million (2018: HKS7,753 million) and HKS1,400 million (2018: HKS1,910
millign) respectively,

Gains and kasses on intorest rate swap contracts recognised in the hedging reserve (Mote 26) as at 31 March 2019 will be
refeased (o the consolidated income statemant,

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has outstanding forward contracts of selling Renminbs 702 millon (2018: Nil) against Hong
Kang Dollars which are not designated for hedge accounting. These lorward contracts were entered for the purpose of
focking in part of the Group's future Renminbi dencminated net income in Mainland China in Hong Keng Dollars term.

The Group's hedging reserves disclosed In Nate 25 relate to the lollowing hedging instruments:

Inferest fate wans

deglgnuted i
cah Mow hidge Hedging raier
HIES'M HKE M

AL Ageill 2016 44 284
Change in Lar ke of hédgng Fmtrument eoognimed

i other compreteniive income (L] [1574]
Reclasstied from other compreherdive mcame 1o

conschdabed incoma statement [r4) [7a)
AL X March 2099 B B
AL Apell 2017 [+cy ]
Change in L ekt of Reciying msrument necoonised

in cther compretentive income He 1
Reclagsied froem other compreherdve moame 1o

conigbdaled income slatemel s -
At 3 Maich 308 a4 124
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Defemed taxation i1s calculated in full on temporary differances under the habiity method.

X0 2016
HES™ HESM

Analysis of net deferred tax liabilities as follows:

Deferred Lax ety (53) (57
Dtarred Tas halbinses 3,84 2980
rm 2H93

The mowvements in deferred tax assets and Habilities during the year were as follows:

Invectmant

allkrwance

HIKE'M

A1 Apel 2008
Exchange adpstments
Recognised in the consolidited income statement

At 31 March 208

At 1 Apeil 2077 2435 {1B) 241
Eschange adustments L 7 n
Acquesition of business i ETY
Dieperals of Fvestment propartes (] b 1
Recognined in the consalidated inoome statemant 463 {54) 408
At 3t March 3078 2905 (1) 693

24 Other Non-current Liabilities

Amaunt due o non-cantroling infsest
Hoan—contiolling interest pit option chligatkan
Retention amount for squistion of o busineiy

2897

2018

HESM
3,552
7o
758

5,100 57
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 Other Non-current Liabilities (Continued)
= TR

0 On 23 February 2015, the Geowp thicugh & non-whally cwned wsosidisry (the "Project Company’, ih which Link kst an indivect 607% imefest and
Man Fung Developmant Limitad [Man Fang’) kas an indinect 30°% intenest) acquired 77 Hod Bun Boad in Kowloon East for commercial cesslopmant.
Far the purpose of funding the corrmencial demiopment Man Nang. & non-controling interest of the Project Company has contributed cash m
prapaion to the sharehoiding ratio 10 the Project Compary. The smont due b non-contialing mbeneat is unsecured, nterest bearng 8 81
atiectie interest mte of 12% (H00A: 16%)L has no fied mepayment term and 5 not repayabie within one year, Such amount ingluding any accrued
Hibedett vill B riegdid B Lhe Propett Compaty’s turike Caah afbed ineeting |1 payment obigations.

() Pursuant Lo the sharsholders’ sgreernent, Nan Fung Fes @ ight fo exerciss & put oplion 1o requise Link to pafchise 81 the Asued shares Nan
Funay hiolds in the Profect Compary at (e then falr market valise, alter the second annivenany ol the completion of the cormmancial property
deewtopment and oeaen conditon have been silisfed. The non-controlleg menet put opton Sbdigaton was iecognaed a6 8 linancal Ratdty
based on & vaiuation perfoimed by Crowe Hohwath First Trust Appeaisal Ple Lid, an ind deril lifm ol professiorsl lified yalueis The vaier has
used discounted cash fiow 33 the waluation techrigue, The waluation § based on various assumptions and cakoulated by reference to 3 member of
unctservabie inputs inciuding the emated Tair value of The equity incenssts of the Project Company at the sxpected time of sueerse af the pan
oplicon, the pxpectod time of exgecie itself, the oz tiow and the discount fate weed Tho Marage: held discussiors with the valeer and roveesoed all
sgnificent gty used Descussions of the valuation peocesses and maults 5t sach edorting date sre held betwesn the Mansger ang the vakier, Fai
valkae of the put aption cblgation i included in Levsl 3 (2098, Level 3) of the Ler value hisranchy, If the estimaced far vadue of the sguty inemsss
of the Project Compaery at the time of exercise is higher, the fair value of the put option obligation would also be highet. [f the expected time of
EXCIT o Lter of if the grpgoan rate s reghe, (hen (e G vidae of Ehir put opLion oESgEE N wionid De kower,

(4} Pursuant to the Framework Agreement dated 20 Feonuasy 2018 in relation to the acgusition of entie issued share capial of MR EME
R0 L 5] (Race Propeny Mansgement [Skenthen) Company Limited], & retention smoust of AMBGE0 milian (equivalent to approsimatieny
HE5758 milion) shall be retaired by the Group, snd shall be pasd by the Gacup to the selior on of Before the second arrsvenary of the tramaction
COMmpaTion date.

Thie movement of non=controlling mtenest put aption obligation during the year is as foliows:

ALTAprE
Recoanmed i the consobdated income stalement:
= Fair valee boss (hote 9]

AL 11 March

25 Units In Issue

208 il
Huimbaer of units Mumber of wnits

Linits bought back for cancellation {82,145,500] {54.504,500)
Units issued Lndar the 3007 LTI Pan 1,407,782 15T
At 31 March 1,109,31,754 150,058,973

Pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Manager by the Unitholders, the Manager (on benalf of Link) bought
back a total of 42,145,500 units (2018; &4,504,500 units) at an aggregate peice of HKS3,216 million (2018: HKS4,349 million),
All wnits Bought back weere cancelled during the vear,

Closing price of the units as at 31 March 2019 was HKSHA0 [2018: HKS67.00) per unit. Based on 210933 254 units in issue as
at 31 March 2013 (2008: 2,150,058,572 units), market capitalisation was HK5193,636 milion (2018: HK$144,054 million)
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 Reserves
Eamings
ratained for
wnchEngs and
cmsh Tlow
Hudging Exchange hadga Total
resErie adjurtments reseroes
HES'M HEEM HIES™
AT AR 2008
Cash oy Peeciges:
- Chiege il valses - [182) - - (0]
~ Amoyrt tramstered 1o the torsolidated income satement
(ate ) - a) N = 4]
L e L L T T T . s - . g -
Exchange kees on translation of financial statemants - - {1.3%5) - {1.3]
et ptoets alinbutaide 1o Uinkholdery:
= At arng rom excharge resree and cash fow
e redene inovernents Mate ]} - - - 1553 1551
At X1 Masch 2019 (58] (] [184) w6 {580}
bt a bl B e o O . NN .. (N, | (5
Cireh fiera Pt
= Change m fair valaes - 5 - - 195
= Amcurt bamdeired 1o the comobidated income Matement
iote i) - 5 - - i
o ARl T P =L by = L
Exchange gain on traliston of financal ttatementt ] - 154 - 168
Poet amoets attribet able fo Unkhalders:
= Areound anging hrom exchangss neserve and cash liow
hedging reserve movernems (Mote (i) - - - 22 203
AL ¥ March 208 i) 294 ¥i2 {LTRE} ]
Hotew

i Amount tramiered to the corsolidaied ncome statement in rrapect of cash fiow Fedges wasd incloded in Tinance corts” [Nole %)
{ifl  The amount repeetentod samngs retained for 1he year 1o alfses the axchangs resorve and cash fow Nedgrg e movements

1 Link Feal Estate wwestment frust Amnaal Report 20182019
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

27 MNote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(a) Net cash generated from operating activities

2008
Prafit bedorne tanation and tansactiens with Unitholdens 2,801 45395
Leng=term moentrse schemes awands e &
Degreciation chafgs 22 20
Gairs on disposals of rvestment. properties {2761 (7.306)
Infeeest Incoimas (85) =)
Fanance costy 50 665
Excharge differvence {29) 58
Change n Tar values af nyvestiment propertss (12,265) {35,453
Increasa i trade and other recefvables, deposis and prepaymerts (0] {naay
Decreate in trade pryables, receipts i advance and acciuals {256) (L]
Increase an seounty deposis L )
2007 LN Plan paid 0] 7]
Inccemie Lix paid 1,102) 50a)
et cath generated from operating activticd 5,941 [ 485

() Major Non-cash Transactions

During the wear, agdditional units of HKSI0 million [2018: HEKS93 million) were issued under the 2007 LTI Plan.

(<) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
ALt
Infmrast Cerlvathes dus to non=
bearing financial controlling
liabilities Instruments imterast
HKS'M HEE'™ HME M
Azt 1 Aprd 2048 28 864
Changes from financing cash flows
Procesads from imberest baanng labdities,
nat of rafsaction costs 14,804 - - - 14,804
Aepinament of intereit beanng habhites {19,124} - - - {19,124]
MICMBAGE I AMeDUnE due 10 nor-controiling
IVIRET = = = 559 550
mterest (pad)racened - [rag) o - (648}
Total changes fram financirg activities {2,320) (rag) 559 (#,909)
WRaon-cash charges
Changes n fair values of canh flow hedges - - 62 - 62
Finance ¢t m rar {1%4) L] BED
Acoursition of busenesses (Note 28 L5875 ) .. =) 2,585
Cahers 6 a) - = ()
Tota! non=cash changes 27153 743 1 58 3,555
As at 31 March 2019 4.7 m 204 3,552 28,054

294/400
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Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {Continued)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Continued)

Amaunt
Interest Deestiwittive due 1o non-
baaring firaheial cantroling
liakalitres Accruals instnmrents Ineresy Tetal
HESM HES™ HESM HEST HiS A
A5 gt 1 Apil 2007 ki Lo 383 2818 I0ERE
Changes trom Rhancing cas Mows
Prooeeds fnom infevest beanng habiies,
net of transaction costs 19,585 - . - 19585
Repayment of interect bearing kabilities fan,345) - - - [2n345)
Incraase in amount due to nan=¢ontioling
mterast - - - an m
Intenest expernes pad - (a3 (18] - i)
Taidwgeionimogewciies L L e N o CAL
Non-cah chanipes
Changas in fair values of cash flow hedges - - (P55] - ()
Finance costs 50 TEB e )] &0 TP
Oithers (] - = = (i}
Total nan-cash changes 4B eE (264 -} 535
Az at 3 Madch 2018 Lo L BE 55 15t Jaaed

138 Unk Fedl Estate wpyestrent frost Annwal Report 2018,2019
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

28 Acquisition of Businesses
0n 26 Movember 2018, Link, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a sale and purchase agreement 1o acquire
the entire issued share capital of Lincofn RE. Investments Limited at a cash consideration (before final adjustment) of
RMABN,791 million. The transaction was completed on 23 January 2018, Lincaln RE Investments Limited mdirectly owns
the entire registered capital of 4k /7 0 M & ik i 2 800 = 66 £ 5 (Beljng Yateng Real Estate Management Company
Lirnitad], which awns the Beijing lingtong Rocsevelt Plaza located at 1 Cuijingbei Lane lukeshu Avenue, Liviean Town,
Tongzhow District, Beljing, The People’s Republic of China.

On 20 February 2008, Link, through a wholly -owned subsidiany, entered into a framework agreement and an equity
transier agreement to acquire the entire issued share capital of {3 {5 SRR I (F )68 2 5 (Baoyi Property
Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited) at a cash consideration (befare final adjustment) of RMBS NS millicn. The
transaction was completed an 14 March 2015, 45 19 S T (R EDTIE 2 5] owns the CentralWalk located at Fubua
Rioad, Central District, Futian, Shenzhen, The People's Republic of China

The acquisition will benefit Link through adding quality Income-producing properties with capital appreciation patential

The provisionally getermined fair values of the assets and liabdlities and goodwill arising from the acquesition e as
follows:

Baifing lingtong

Resievelt Plaza CantralWalk

HEE ™ HE'M
Ivvpstment propertes (Note 15) {Nate) 0,663
Cagh and cash aquivalents W
Othes et current Habilies (234)
Bank bormowings {2.575)
Mok aziais soquind 8,020
Goadwill [Mate 1] a3
Purchase contideraton B,063
Consideration payables and retention amounts (@13}
Cash and cash equivalents im sutriichanes aoguimed (166
Cash outiiw of BOOUNEIDNS T.00%

Mate: Beyphg fingtang Hocsevelt Mazs and Centrafalk weic valoed at 31 October 20018 shd 3 Décomber 20498 fospotti vely by Jones Lang LaSale
Limited, the principal valuer of Link. Theve approomate the fair values of the imeestmant properties at the acquisiticn dates.
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 Commitments
(a) Capital Commitments

Capital expendiune of imvestment properted contracted but rot prewided {ar
at the erd of the year

aoe
HESM
1,159

256

(b) Operating Lease Commitments
As at 31 March 2015, the analysis of the Group's aggregate future mimimum kease rental payables under non-

cancellable operating leases is as follows:
2018
HISM
6
&

Within ame year
Between one and five yean

30 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances

Information reguired to be disclosed concerming related party transactions is set out i this note unless disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements.

(@) MNature of Relationship with Connected/Related Parties

The table sat forth below summarnses the names of the connected/refated parties, as defined in the REIT Code/
HKAS 24 (Revised) "Related Party Disclosures”, and the natufe af their relationship with the Group as at 31 Maich

2015

Conmected ralated party Relationship with the Group
HERC instingtiona Trust Services (Asia) Limited (the Trastes’) * The Trustes af Link
The Hongiong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and its subaidianes

[exciuding the Trustee and [t propnetary subsidianies) (the "HSBC Group™) * Assodiates® of the Trutee
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (the ‘Principal Vahuer") The Principal Valuer of Link
Jones Lang LaSafie Management Sensoes Limined Azsociate” of the Priscigal Valeer
Beijing Jones Lang LaSale Property Management Senvices Company Limited

shenchen Branch Assoiate® of the Prnopal Valeer
Premeed Cleaning Serviced Limited (Note (j) Ausotiate® of the Princpal Valuer
Aedas Limsted * Assocale” of deedtion
Dah 5ing Hank, Limited Assockate” of drector
The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Campanies Assocate” of dracion
The Hong Kong institute of Directors Limited Ausociate” of drector

* Thihie CORNSCTEE Pariegs ae 30 cormdened o ielatnd et of the Group,
* TAEOCETE” hak thee mesaning ascribed to it under the REIT Ciode
Mt

M Premier UIHI‘-'W Servioet Limited was ceased (o B& am aosociate of (e Principal Valuer arg ceased 10 Be & Lonneoied pamy of Link sinoe |
Mermesmber AR

130 Uk Fedl Estate wpyestrent frost Annwal Report 2018,2019
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

30 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)

(k) Transactions with Connected/Related Parties
The fallowing transactions were camed out with connected/related parties:

pleil] 2008
HiS'™M HEE™M

L]

Trustee's fee paid ard paymble to the Trostes (MNate (if)
Transactions with the HSBC Group (Nate (1d)
Agency lee on disposals of smyestment properties
Interest expanse and various financng chages te the HS3L Group on
Interes beading abiites, croos curmency sane comtracts and intesest
fate swap contracts
Rental income from the HSEC Group on leasing of retall units
mterest mcome from the HSBC Group on bank depoits
Trarmactions with the: Prircial Vahser (Notes (i)
Vakliathon fee
Conmdtancy services feas
Agency fee
Charges for provision of litter services paid and payable to Jones Lang LaSalle
Mishagament Services Liribed [Nete [il]) [18) -
Property managament fee paid and payable to Befing Jones Lang LaSalle
Sroperty Management Sesvices Company Limited Shenzhen Branch
Mote i) m
Architectural/réncration comltancy 1ervices fess paid and payable 1o
Aedas Limited (hotes (12) and (v} {51 "
Rental income from Dahk Sing Bank, Limited on leasag of retsd units
{heotes () and {v]} 8 3

wEd B

==

s3g 28F E EI

hotex:

[} AR connected party transactions were carried out in accordance with the termmes af the releqant agreements goveming the transactions and
I the: ordenary o of usingss,

(] Fhee Trustes 5 ertithed 1o pecene an anisl inusters fee [caloulined sl pasd moniivy) 31 rales rengeng Irom CLO0E por anncen 1o 001% piy
armum of the latest property value o determined in the litesd annual valuation report of an independent propetty valuer recommendsd by
e Manager ard appodnged by the Trustes for and on behall of Link from time 1o time, subject 1o & minimam of HE5150,000 per mont b

(%) The transactions weve entered inta @ an's length on nonmal gommencial tomms.
i) Aedas Limited is an associate of Mrian Keith GRIFFITHS,
[v} D Sing Rank, Limaed & am associate of Mr Blair Chilton FMCKERELL,
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
[Continued)
(c) Balances with Related Parties
Balances with related partias are s=t out below:

JE
Trustes's fee payabie to the Trustes el {3
Interast bearing kabilitves with the H38C Group (1940} [a7a0)
Agenty lee payable 1o the HEBC Grout (=5} (12
Meat imtenest payable to the HSEC Group (30 m
Security diposits from the HSBC Group [ 1] (1]
(Cross CLATENCY SWap contracts and inTerest rabe swag contracts with the
HEAC Graus {1z3) {84
Deposts placed with the HSBC Group 2,000 640

(d) Key Management Compensation
As at 31 March 2019, key management composed of twa Executive Directars, 10 Non-Executive Directors and 10
sentor management stafl, Further details of the remuneration of the Directors on a named basks are disclosed in
highlighted sections of the Corporate Governance Repart with a heading of “Audited” on pages 23 to 25, These
sections form the “Audited” part of Corporate Governance Report and ane part of the financial statements

The aggregate amounts of emoluments of the key management staff of the Group are as follows:

20E

HCSM

Fess L] -]
Basic wianies. allowances and other benefits a3 Lz
Long-term mcefithie tchemes swards jr -] B2
m =3
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Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

30 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)

(d) Key Management Compensation (Continued)
The amounts reflected in the emolument bands below are those in the financizl statements under HKFRSs in the
yesr 20182005, and include shoet term remuneration paid in cash and portion of the lang-term incentive schemes

recognised (althouah a portion of which has not been vested) in the year 2018/2012 attributable to the twao
Executive Directons and senlor management

e 28
Humber of Humper of
Ermaliement Bands (Mate (i) individuals imhwiduals

HISL000,561 - HISL000,000
HESL0G0.001 ~ HKS5.000,000 =
HASE, 000,001 - HESH000000
HAST, 000,001 = HESH000,000
HISB,000,001 - HX59,500,000
HES0, 000, 00 - Hs 55, 500,000
HESD 00,000 - HKSIKHOO0000
HISI0,000,001 - HE5%,500,000
HKSR 500008 - HKSER 000,000
HESELS00.000 - HK512,000,000
HES22 000,001 -~ HE 523 500 D00 ™
HESI2 000,001 - HKS32. 500,000 =
HISE6,000,001 = HXSEA,500,000 5
HKSN 500,008 - HKETI, 0000000 =

i e R T |

L I R L A |
[

O TPl

=
(-]

Total rumber of Executive Directon and senios management (Mote (i)

Hotew:

Il The calcuation of the toral remunerstion lor the emolument Bands is based an the valss of the iamng-tem incentye awands redoghised
during 1k year and The thart Serm remunerstion paid and recognised during the year

i Emaluments pad and secognised fod the two Execurtive Deecbory, Mr Geome Kwok Lung HOMGCHOY (4) and 8 Andy CHELIMNG Lee Mng [B)
The respeciive smolumeeis inchide the pomion ol the long-1erm iIncenbyve wchemes iecconned for Che yeae, winth the delails are el oot in
1R L ang-term incentve Schemed” weolicn an paget 6 g B The remainkng (s the paid shoet -tenm femuneation,

e ciudent & retived Seriod manageme sLatl whd 5 ane ol the Tee highest paid ndmaiduals

The five highest pasd individuais for the year include two [2018: two) directors whose emoluments reflected in the
above. The emoluments paid and recognised bo the remaining three (2018: three) Individuals during the year are as

follows:
2018 2B
HES'M HES M
B salanes, other allowances and benefits in and 10 g
Detretmnany bonus 16 ]
Long-term incentive schemes awards n ir]

7 6
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MNaotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 Future Minimum Rental Receivables
As at 31 March 2019, the anam.vs of the Grcrup’s aggregate future minimum réntal income récenvables undar non-

cancellable operating leases [s as follows:
e
RS M

iithan one el &, 255 ETM
Betwreen one and five years 0,432 9,19
Aeyand live phai 1,416 &7

18,107 A0

Maost of the operating leases ate on fixed terms and for terms of 3 years (2018; 3 years),

32 Principal Subsidiaries
Link held the fallowing principal subsidisnes as at 31 Masch 20719

Place of establishment anc of isswed 5
kind of legal entity flace of capltalf
Hame opetation: Principal activities resglstered capital
Durectily i
Tha Lk Holdmgrt Limited Ciryrman [Sandy, limied abilsy Irneesarmang hioiding a5 0o
caimpanyHong Kong
Lina Agset Management Listed g Kiong, brmered Aallity AsSet MnageTenl HE 512,000,000 no%
companyHeng Keng
Ity el
Atfoed Limited o Kiong lmstiod alwlity Imvestmant hoidng HICHE0, 539,360 0%
company/Heng Kong
Atlantic Baesk Limited Hoing Kiong, limited gty Investment holding HESE oL
company/Hong Kang
SRR AN LE Peapds's Repuilic of Ching, Froperty holeing and L1$458.500, 000 0ok
[Bacyi Fropery Management limited Bandity company/ leaang
[Shenzhen) Compay Limited Feople’s Republic of China
it LT 1 E 4 B g ] People's Beputie of Crina, lrted Froperty holding and iS5 WD, 500, 000 nin
[Eaxjnay Varensg Real Euiate Manageemens kabiity company/Peoples Republc  leaung
Compary Limites) of Ching

138 Uk Feadl Estate wpyestrent frost Annwal Report 2018,2019
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32 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

i3

Motes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

Farticulars

Fisce of eriabllthment and
kind of legal antity/place of
Marms operations Invtwrast hadd
indii iy edd frontnoed):
Certury Land imietdmant Limited Hong Korg, mited Kakslity Bo%
companyHang Kang
China East Investment Uimited Hong Korg, limited lakslity e
cormpany/Hang Kong
ENSEE(E AMLE People's Apublic of Ching, Property holding and IMEI42 300,418 L
(ECM Prassiity Helding (Tisran) Co L) Bmited Habliity company) taasing
Frople's RBepublc of China
Firet Venbate RE Limted Hong Kong imited habslity Irivestment hoiding HES)
2orpanyHang Kang
Great Land (HE] Limited Hong Korg, mited lakslity Property hoidsg and HESLOD0/000
compuany/Hang Kong leasing
RHERER AR HRLE Feopls’s Republic of China, roperty holdieg and EMBE00,000.000 0%
{Guangrhou Qun Ging Ha Real Edate fmied hability company/ leading
Campany Limfled) People's Repablc of China
Lirk 2073 C8 Limited Eritish Vargin hdands, miled lisbilty  Financing uss 0o%
<ompany/Hang Kong
Lirk Monte {HE] Limied Hong Korg, kmited liakslimy Property holdng and ] 0ok
compangHang Kong leasing
Lirk Proparties Limited Cayman klandy, brrited Eabiity Property hoiding and (1] Lur
compunyHang Kang teating
Presion Rreer {HE) Limited Hong Korg, lamated liakshity Irvestment hoiding HE§1 0%
<ormpany Hang Kohg
FERERELE ST Faopla's Aepublic of China, Property holding and RMBZEY,555.000 0ok
{Shanchai Kireg Bang Fropertsts Co, Ltd)  Bmited Habiliy company/ feasing
People's Repabibc of China
The Link Finance (Cayman) 2006 Lerited Cayman kandy, benitad babiity et uss 100
compangHang Kang
The Lisk Finance (Cayrmaeh 1009 Lseited  Cayyman klancdy, bmitad bability Tinaecing L2
companyHang Kang
The Lk Finance Limiled Mo Korg, miled hakslity Finanding HEE]
corpany Hang Kong

The Manager considers the non-controlling inberest in respect of Century Land Investment Limited is not matenal to the

Group.

The Manager Is of the opinkon that a compbete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and
therelore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which principally affect the results or assets and

Babilities of the Group.

Approval of the consolidated financial statements
The cansalidated fimancial stalements were authoesed for issue by Lhe Board of Directors af the Manager and the

Trustee on 3 June 2019,

302/400
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2019 31
I 226,937 3,072,727
1. 38,198 517,201
1. T 188,739 2,555,526
Iv. 2,109,321,254
V. TTERN 89.48 1,212

2019 31 587 7,945
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

183 17 1712-1716

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
HKSCC CCASS

0.0027
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1
1
@

22,000,000 298

22,000,000

2017 31 5,000,001

2018 28 12,000,000

2019 22,000,000

10,000,000
2019 12,000,000 22,000,000
@
— —2
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@
2019 31
31
2019 2018
881,356,826  11,933,571,424 843,639,201  11,422,874,782
(580,352,860) (7,857,977,724)  (589,563,022) (7,982,683,318)
3,482,416 47,151,913 1,433,795 19,413,584
(288,924,300)  (3,912,035,022)  (254,076,179) (3,440,191,464)
15,562,082 210,710,590 1,433,795 19,413,584
(12,079,666)  (163,558,678)
3,482,416 47,151,913 1,433,795 19,413,584
18 31
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2019 31
31
2019 2018
3,482,416 47,151,913 1,433,795 19,413,584
3,482,416 47,151,913 1,433,795 19,413,584
18 31
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2019 31
31
2019 2018
4,794,594 64,918,803 4,757,063 64,410,633
10 237,596,887 3,217,061,850 229,530,231 3,107,839,328
10 2,614,268 35,397,189 2,620,486 35,481,380
11 165,000,000  2,234,100,000
11 305,370,777 4,134,720,321 57,326,427 776,199,822
550,376,526 7,452,098,162 459,234,207 6,218,031,163
303,621,418 4,111,034,000 289,519,021 3,920,087,544
10 1,355,150 18,348,731 640,392 8,670,908
12 10,000,000 135,400,000 10,000,000 135,400,000
13 102,367,209 1,386,052,010 86,953,000 1,177,343,620
9,427,330 127,646,048
426,771,107 5,778,480,789 387,112,413 5,241,502,072
123,605,419 1,673,617,373 72,121,794 976,529,091
13 97,905,209 1,325,636,530 49,904,000 675,700,160
25,700,210 347,980,843 22,217,794 300,828,931
14 12,000,000 162,480,000 12,000,000 162,480,000
13,700,210 185,500,843 10,217,794 138,348,931
25,700,210 347,980,843 22,217,794 300,828,931
18 31
13 31 2019
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2019 31
2018 12,000,000 162,480,000 10,217,794 138,348,931 22,217,794 300,828,931
3,482,416 47,151,913 3,482,416 47,151,913
2019 31 12,000,000 162,480,000 13,700,210 185,500,843 25,700,210 347,980,843
2017 5,000,001 67,700,014 8,783,999 118,935,346 13,784,000 186,635,360
1,433,795 19,413,584 1,433,795 19,413,584
6,999,999 94,779,986 6,999,999 94,779,986
2018 31 12,000,000 162,480,000 10,217,794 138,348,931 22,217,794 300,828,931
18 31
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31
2019 2018
15 79,349,646  1,074,394,207 15,339,792 207,700,784
3,694,704 50,026,292 1,362,363 18,446,395
165,000,000  2,234,100,000  (15,000,000)  (203,100,000)
168,694,704  2,284,126,292  (13,637,637)  (184,653,605)
6,999,999 94,779,986
6,999,999 94,779,986
248,044,350  3,358,520,499 8,702,154 117,827,165
57,326,427 776,199,822 48,624,273 658,372,656
31 11 305,370,777  4,134,720,321 57,326,427 776,199,822
18 31
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HKAS
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HKFRS
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK 1FRIC

HKFRS 10

HKFRS

2019

@

@
)
®
©)

2019
2020
2021

)

HKFRS

HKAS

23

2018

HKAS 28

2015 -2017
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HKFRS
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2019

2,900,000
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31

240,211,155

222,326,427
)

2019 31

®)

11

305,370,777
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100 2018 100

2018 2,140,000

2018 2019 31
2019 31
2018 232,150,717
305,370,777 2018
2018 222,326,427

2019 2018
303,621,418 289,519,021

1,355,150 640,392
10,000,000 10,000,000
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()
()
©
()
HKFRS 13
2018
()
HKFRS
©)
2019 2018
881,356,826 843,639,201
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2019 2018
664,675,941 675,345,075
13,912,750 13,541,248
13 173,688,163 126,088,694
852,276,854 814,975,017
2019 2018
8,496,552 8,290,288
15,356,321 14,174,163
36,000 36,000
54,664,000 31,335,000
85,642,583 50,445,354
164,195,456 104,280,805
2019 31 2007 LTI
(@)
2007 LTI 2017 LTI
16.5 2018
2019 2018
15,562,082 1,433,795
16.5 2018 16.5 2,567,744 236,576
10,463,544
(574,599) (236,576)
(377,023)
12,079,666
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2019 2018
852,276,854 814,975,017
1,755,790 1,704,650
22,200 90,300
1,777,990 1,794,950
10
11
2019 2018
15,370,777 8,326,427
290,000,000 49,000,000
305,370,777 57,326,427
165,000,000
305,370,777 222,326,427
12
2019 2018
10,000,000 10,000,000
2009 27 10
2021 26 2019 31
10 2018 10
13
2019 2018
200,272,418 136,857,000
(102,367,209) (86,953,000)
97,905,209 49,904,000
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2007 23 10
2007 LTI
2007 LTI
2007 LTI
2007 LTI

2018 1,561,196

2017 LTI
2017 10
2017 LTI

TUR NPI

2017 LTI

2007 LTI
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2007 LTI

2017 22

2007 LTI
2007 LTI
TUR NPI
1,407,782

2017 LTI

2017 LTI

2017 LTI
2017 LTI
8,000 2018
2017 LTI
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2018 2019
) 31
'®)
2007 LTI
2015 24
2015 24 2018 20 381,539 (376,790)C ) (4,749)
2016 11 14
2016 11 14 2018 a0 422,855 (421,011)C ) (1,844)
2016 11 14
o % 420,736 (21,500) 399,236 738,472
2007 LTI 1,225,130 (797,801) (28,093) 399,236 738,472
2017 LTI
2017 14
2017 14 o % 413,000 (4,000) (28,321) 380,679 838,249
2017 14
3020 2 413,000 (4,000) (28,635) 380,365 837,511
2018 2018 579,500 (2,250) (10,750) 566,500 1,274,931
2020 30 : . : : 2274,
2018 579,500 (2,250) (10,750) 566,500 1,274,931
2021 30 . . . . 214,
2017 LTI 826,000 1,159,000 (8,000) (4,500) (78,456) 1,894,044 4,225,622
2,051,130 1,150,000  (805,801) (4,500) (106,549) 2,293,280 4,964,004
100 (609,981)C )
2018 2019 2,051,130 1,159,000 (1,415,782) (4,500) (106,549) 2,293,280 4,964,004
2017 2018 2,120,350 865,000 (1,561,196) (5,000) (109,554) 2,051,130 4,108,622
() 100 200
)
() 100
14
2018 2019 31 12,000,000 12,000,000
2017 5,000,001 5,000,001
2018 28 6,999,999 6,999,999
2018 31 12,000,000 12,000,000
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2019 2018
15,562,082 1,433,795
(3.482,416) (1,433,795)
(249,819) (425,576)
(8,066,656) (131,432,330)
6,218 (692,531)
14,102,397 123,552,071
714,758 220,158
63,415,418 24,118,000
(2,652,336)
79,349,646 15,339,792
2019 2018
10,263,230 9,749,317
871,093,596 833,889,884




LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEREEIARLE

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDET 31 MARCH 2010

Mote
Management fee income G
IMrect costs
Interest income
Administrative expenses
Profit before taxation
Taxation ]
Profit for the year q

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements.

-1 -
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204 2018
HE% HE$%

881,556 B0 Ba5.000,201
(580,352, 860) (580,563, 022)
FedB2, 410 1433795

(288,02q,300)  (254,076,179)

15,502,082 1,433,795
{12,070,666) *
SA82.410 1,433,795
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEREEIARLE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

2014 2018
HE% HE%
Profit for the vear Ba82410 Lg33:795
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year B4582,416 1,433,795

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these inancial statements.

-14 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HREAEwEAHELE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 3 MARCH 2oug

Nobe 2014 2018
HE#% HES
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current assets
Receivables, deposits and prepayments 4,794,594 4,757,065
Amounts due from fellow subsidiarics 10 297,506,887 020,530,931
Amount due from Link Real Estate Investment Trost 10 2,604,268 2,620,486
Short-term bank deposits 11 = 165,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 11 05,570,777 57326427
550,376,526 459,234,207
Current linbilities
Trade and other pavahbles 304,621,418 289,519,021
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 10 1,355,150 640,302
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 12 100,00, 103, 03000, [0
Current portion of long-term incentive schemess
provision 13 102,367,209 86,953,000
Provision for taxation 0,427,330 .
426,771,107 872,413
Nel current assels 123,605,419 74,120,794
Non-current liability
Long-term incentive schemes provision 13 97,005,200 40,004,000
Nel assels 25,700,210 22,217,794
EQUITY
Share capital 14 122 (B, VA 12,0030, 000
Betained earnings 13,700,210 10,217,794
Member's funds 25,700,210 22,217,794

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements.

The financial stalements on pages 13 to 31 were approved by the boand of directors of the Company on 3
June 2019 and were signed on its behalf by

George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY Andy CHEUNG Lee Ming
Director D¥irector

-15-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HRREENaRLE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Share Retained

capital earnings Total

HE% HES HES

At 1 April 2018 12,0000, 0010 10,217,794 22,917,704

Total comprehensive income for the vear - 9,482,416 9,482,416

At 1 March 2019 12, (000, D00 13,700,210 25 F00, 210

At 1 April 2017 500000, 001 8,784,099 13,784,000

Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,433,795 L4533.795
Transaction with equity holder

lssue of shares 6,999,999 - 6,900,009

At 31 March 2098 12, (000, (0 10,207,794 29,917,704

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements.

-i6-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEREEIARLE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Mote 204 2018
HE#% HES
Opcrating activities
Net cash generated from operating activities 15 70,540,640 15930, 702
Investing activities
Interest income received 3,604,704 1,362,363
Deerease/(inerease] in short-term bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months 1685, 00, 00 (15.000,000)
Net cash generated fromy/{used in) investing sctivities 168,604,704 (13,637.637)
Financing activity
Proceeds from issuance of shores - 6,000,004
Net cash generated from financing activity - 6,000,000
Net change in eash and cash equivalents 248,044,350 8,702,154
Cash and casgh cquivalents at 1 April 57 gabqe7 48,624,273
Cash and cash equivalenits at 31 March i F05.370,777 57.3z0,427

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these lnancial statenwents.,

-17-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HREEETARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Corporate information
Link Asset Management Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its principal activity is asset management. The address of its registered office is

33/F., AXA Tower, Landmark East, 100 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is licensed to earry out Type § *Asset Management” regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinanee (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company acts as the mansgement company of Link Real Estate Investment Trust {*Link”).

z Basis of preparation

{n)  Statement of complinnce
The financial statements have been preparsd in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs"). HKFRSs is a collective term which includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HEASs™) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

{b)  Accounting convention and functional curreney

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dellars, the functional currency of the
Company.

{c) Adoption of new and revised HEKFRSs

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has adopted all the new amendments that ane
currently in issue and effective,

HEAS 40 Amendments Transfers of Investment Property

HEFRS 2 Amendments Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

HEFES 4 Amendments Applying HEFRS g Finoncial Instruments with HKFRS
4 Insuranee Contracts

HEFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HEFRS 15 Amendments Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HE(IFRIC)-Imt 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Annual Improvements to HEFRSs
2014-2m6 Cycle

The adoption of these new amendments has not had any significant effect on the accounting policies
or resnlts reported and financial position of the Company,

-8 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HENEEIARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs {Continued )

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations, which have been published but are
not vet effective, huve not been early adopted in the finuncial statements, These are effective for the
Company's accounting perieds beginning on or after 1 April zo19.

Amendments to HEAS 1and HKAS 8 Definition of Materialt

Amendments to HEAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement'

Amendments to HEAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HEFRS 3 Definition of a Business'#

Amendments to HKFRS g Prepayment Features with Negative Compensationt

HEFRS 16 Lazisimsit

HEFRS 17 Insuranee Contractsts

HE(IFRIC)=Int 23 Unecertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Conceptual Framework for Financial — Revised Coneeptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 Reporting!

Amendments to HEFRS 10 and HEKAS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
28 ils Associobe or Joint Ventunes!

Anmnual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cyelelt

il pffsetive for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
) pffective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
W pffective for scoonnting periods beginning on or after 1 January 20
W po mandatery effective date is determined vet bul eardy application b permdited

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HEFRS3= upon initial application. Preliminary review noted that the adoption of all these or revised

HEFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial performance and
financial position but may result in new or amended disclosures in the financial statements.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MEEEEIARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant sceounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

{a) Rececivables

Reeeivables are recognised initinlly at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
provision for impairment. The Company holds the receivables with the objective to collect the
contractun] eash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at smortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Company applies the HEFRS g in assessing expected credit losses,
Reeeivables are considered to be low risk, and therefore the impairment provision is determined as
12 months expected credit losses.

{b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts,

{c) Trade and other payvables
(i Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially ot fair value and sobsequently - measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(ii) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or eonstructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where a provision is expected
to be reimburzed, the reimbursement is recognizsed as a separate agset but only when the
reimibursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be requined
to zettle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects eurrent marcket assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific 1o the obligation. The inerease in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense,

{d) Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amcsunt by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in wse. Non-financial assets
ather than goodwill that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

(e}  Revenue recognition
Management fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time propartion basis using the effective interest method,
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MEREEIERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f) Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised on an accrual basis.
{g) Employee benefits

Employvee benefits such as wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised as an expense when the
employes has rendered the service.

Emploves entiticments to annual leave are recognised when they acerue to emplovees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annnal leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Emplovee entitfernents to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave. The employver’s contnibutions to the Mandatory Provident Fund for
employvees are expensed as incurred.

(h) Employecs’ long-term incentive schemes

Ineentives i the form of o lomg-term incentive schemes are provided to eligible emploves
{including directors).

Employes serviees rendered in exchange for the grant of the long-term incentive schemes awirds
are recopnised as an expense, with o cormesponding inerease in the lability ineurred. This expense
is charged to the inecome statement over the vesting periods. Until the liahility is settded, the value
of the liability is re-mensured ot each reporting date and a1 the date of 2ettlement, with any changes
in value recognised in the income statement for the year. At each reporting date, estimates of the
number of long-lerm incentive schemes awards that are expected to vest will be revised and the
impact of the revision is recognised in the ineome statement. The carrving value of the long-term
incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external
valuers at least annually. If the awards do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts charged to the
ineome statement will be written back,

3 Financial risk management
(a)  Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it toa variety of inaneial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk and eurrency risk), credit risk and Gguidity risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Company. The Company's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markels and seeks o minimise potential
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.
[1}] Market risk
(A}  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the visk that changes in market interest rates will impact the

earnings of the Company. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk since the
Company’s deposits at banks bear variable interest rutes.

0] =
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MENEEIERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Finaneial risk management {Continued)
Finaneial risk factors (Continued)
(i)  Market risk (Continued)
{A)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, if interest rates on deposits at banks had been 100 basis
points {2018: 100 basis points) higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit for the vear would have been approximately HESz.900,000 (2018:
HES2,190,000 ) higher/lower, mainly as o result of higher/lower interest income
from deposits at banks.

(B} Currency risk

Curreney risk arises on account of monetary assets and Habilities denominated in
acurrency that is not the functional curreney. As ot 31 March 2018 and 20149, there
are no significant monetary balances that are held in a non-functional curreney.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by the ultiimate holding entity on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from the potential failure of the Company’s counterparties to mect their obligations under
finanekal contracts. The Company is exposed to eredit risk on its receivables due from group
companies,Link as well s cagh and cagh equivalents and short-term bank deposits,

The Company manages its deposits with banks by limiting the level of deposits to be placed
with any eounterparties. Deposits placed with any individual counterparty cannot exceed a
pre=defined limit assigned to the individeal counterparty. As at 31 March 2019, all deposits
wiere plaeed with banks with external credit ratings of no less than “BEB+".

The maximum exposure to eredil risk is represented by the carrving amount of each
financial asset in the statement of finaneial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. As at 31 March 2zo1g, the Company's exposure to credit risk arising from
amounts due from group companies/Link amounted to HES240,210,155 (2015:
HKS232,150,717). The Company’s exposure to eredit risk arsing from cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits amounted to HES305.370,777 (2018:
HKS222,326,427) and is sel oul in Nole 11

(ili})  Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient eash and the availability
of funding from committed credit facilities and operating cash flow.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits of HE$305,370,777 (2008: HE$222,926,427). Management considers that the
Company does not have significant ligquidity risk.

= B9 =
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MEREEIERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4 Finaneial risk management {Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iil)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Company's financial lisbilities into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining pericd at the reporting date to the contractual matarity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiseounted cash flows,

2015 2018
HES HES
Less than 1 year
Trade and other payables 062,418 280 519,021
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,355,150 40,302
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow
subsidiary 103, CRB0, (RO 100, CHOMY, CROHD

{b) Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability o
continue a5 a going concern whilst seeking to maximise benefits to member.,

The Company congiders the equity of the Company (as shown in the statement of Anancial position])
as its eapital.

Az the Company is a lieensed corporation for Type 9 “Asset Management” regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), it has to comply with
the following requirements regarding its capital as stipulated in the Securities and Futures
{Financial Resources) Rules:

(i) a minimuwm level of paid up share capital has 1o be met; and
(it} a minimum level of liguid capital has to be met.

The Company reviews the capital structure periodically and manages its overall eapital structure

through the pavment of dividemnds and issuance of new shares, [ts share capital and liquid capital

levels are closely monitored to ensure strict compliance with the statutory minimum requirements.
{ch Fair value estimation

(i) Fair value hierarchy

HEFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurement by three levels of fair value
measurement hierarchy:

¢ Levelin Quoted prices (unadjusted) in setive markets for identical assets or Habilities.

o Levelz: Inputs other than quoted priees included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or lisbility, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

+ Leveld: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
[that is, unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers between these three levels during the vear (2018: Nil).

T
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HENEwIARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Finaneial risk management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hicrarchy levels as
of the date of the event or change in cireumstances that caused the transfer.

(i) Fair value disclosure

The carrying values less impoirment provision of receivables and the carrying values of
bank deposits and trade and other payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values due o their short=term maturities.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. 1t also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
ol applving the Company’s accounting policies.

Estimates and jdgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expertence and
other factors, including expectations of future events thal are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstanees.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrving amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next year are discussed below.,

Long-term ineentive schemes valuation

The value of awards granted is estimated based on valuation teehnigues and assumptions on unit
prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out rates and other market conditions,
which management considers as representing the best estimate of the value of the liability for such
awards at the reporting date, The carrving value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is
reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external valuers at least annually.

Management fee income
2014 208
HE% HK%
Management fee inoome 881,356,826 843,639,201
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEREwIaRLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

20314 2018

HE% HE%
Wages and salaries g, 675,941 675,445,075
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme 14,912,750 15,541,248
Long=term incentive schemes awards (Note 13) 173688, 167 126,088, 604
Staff costs (Note g) #5o 076,854 814,975,017

Er l 0] I I

2019 2018

HES HE%
Fees B.406.552 8,200,288
Base pay, allowance and other benefits 15,350,321 14,174, 10%
Contribution o pension scheme 36,000 36,000
Variable remuneration related wo performance 54,064,000 31,335,000
Longsterm incentive schemes awards (X ote) 85,042,583 50,445,354

164,105,456 104,280,805

Note:  Values of the long-term incentive schemes awards are estimated based on valuation
techniques with assumptions on anit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distobution
pay-oul rates and other markel conditions, There is no commitment to pay oul the
estimated values provided. The eventual amounts to be paid depend on the seale of
achievement against cerlain performance and service related vesting conditions. For the
portion of the awards which do ool vest on the vesting dates, the amounls previously
charged to the income statement will be written back. Details on the long-term incentive
sehemes are set oul in Note 13.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, certain long-term incentive schemes awards have been
vested and units of Link (*Units™) have been issued under the zoo7 LTI Plan. The amounts
recognised as expenses represent the provision of the awards granted under both the 2007
LTI Plan and the zo17 LTI Scheme recognised as set out in the aceounting policy Note zth).
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HREEEIARLE

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CGNI'INUED}
8 Taxation

Homng Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit
for the vear {2018: Nil),

The differences between the Company's expected tax charge, using the Hong Kong profits tax rate,
and the Company's taxation for the vear were as follows:

2014 218
HES HE%
Profit before taxation 15,562,082 1,433,795
Expected tax calculated at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 2,567,744 296,576
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 10,463,544 -
Tax effect of non-taxable income (574,5094) [296,576)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax loss (77.023) -
Taxation 12,070, 666 -
9 Profit for the vear
Profit for the vear is stated after chanzing:
201G 2018
HEs HES
Staff costs (Mote 7) Brz,276,854 B14.975.017
Auditor's remuneration
Aundit and audit-related assurance services 1,755,700 1,704,650
Others 22,200 Q1,300
Total auditor's remuneration LTT7990 1,794,950
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Balances with group companies/Link

The balances with group companies/Link are mainly management fee receivables. Amounts due
fromfto group companies and amount due from Link were unsecured, interest froe, repayable on

demand and denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,

Cash and eash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

Cash at bank
Short-term bank deposits with original maturity of less
than three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term bank deposits with eriginal maturity of more

than three months

Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary

Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary

2014 2ol

HE% HE%
15:370,777 8,320,427
200,000,000 A0 00000
305.370,777 57,926,427

= 105, 0030, 000

A05.370.777 222,326,427

2014y 208
HE% HEKS
103, 00,000 10,000,000

On 27 March 2009, an agreement in respect of a revolving subordinated lean facility of HEK$10
million froam a fellow subsidiary was signed among the Company, the fellow subsidiary and The
Securities and Futures Commission and the availability of the facility had been extended to 26
March 2021, As at 31 March 2019, HKS 100 million (zo18: HEKS10 million) was drawdown from the

facility.

The approved subordinated loan from the fellow subskdiary is unsecured, interest free, repayable
on demsand after two vears from the drawdown date and denominated in Hong Koog Dollars,

The carrving amount of the approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidinry approximates

it= fair value.

Long-term incentive schemes provision

Long-term incentive schemes provision
Less: current portion of long-term incentive schemes
prowision

Mon-current portion of long-term incentive schemes
provision

—g-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEEEEIARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Long-term incentive schemes provision (Continued)

zoo7 LTI Plan

A long-term ineentive plan (the “zoo7 LT1 Plan®) was adopted en 23 July zoo7 by Link's
Unitholders which was expired on 22 July 2017 after being in operation for 10 vears. After its expiry,
ney further awards shall be granted under the zoo7 LT Plan. Nonetheless, awards granted and
accepted prior to its expiry but vet to vest shall continue to have effect and be governed by the rules
of the 2007 LTI Plan.

Under the 2007 LTT Plan, three types of awards - restricted unit award, unit option and conditional
eash award - might be granted to directors and key emplovees of the Company. No unit option has
ever been granted under 2007 LTI Plan since its adoption up till expiry.

For those restricted unit awards granted with performanee goals, the eventual numbers of new
Units to be issued to the relevant grantees on vesting are linked to the performance of Link in terms
of total Unitholders return (*TUR™) and nel property ineome (*XP1") or certain vesting conditions.
Conditional eash awards are granted in conjunction with restricted unit awards, bestowing upon
each grantee a conditional right to reecive a cash payment representing an amount equivalent to
the apgregate of the distributions during the vesting period.

During the vear, 1,407.782 Units (2018: 1,561,106 Units) were issued for restricted anit awards
vested in accordance with the 2oo7 L11 Plan.

2017 LTI Scheme

On wduly 2017, Link adopted a new loog-term incentive scheme (the *zory LT Scheme®). Under
the 2017 LTI Scheme, restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards may be granted to
directors of the Company and key emplovees of the group.

During the vear, certain directors and key employees of the Company were granted restricted unit
awards and conditional cash awards at nil monetary consideration under the 2007 LTI Scheme, The
restricted unit awards granted vnder the 2o17 LT1 Scheme, in general, will vest approximately two
tor three vears from the date of grant, Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, Units will be purchased in the
grantees” favour from open stock market to satisfy resiricted units awands vested. For those
restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of Units to be
purchasged in each grantee's favour upon vesting are linked to the performance of Link based on the
TUR, NPI or certain vesting conditions, Conditional cash awards were also granted in conjunction
with the restricted unit awards, bestowing upon each grantee a conditional right to receive a cash
pavimenl representing an amount equivalent to the aggregate of the distributions during the vesting
period.

During the year, 8,000 units (2018: Xil) purchased from the market for restricted unils awards
which have vested in accordance with the zovy LT plan,
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEEEEIARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Long-term incentive schemes provision (Continued)

During the vesting period, a linbility is recognised representing the estimated value of the awards
granted under both the 2007 LTI Plan and the 2017 LT Scheme and the portion of the vesting
period expired as at the reporting date. The value of the avards was estimated at the reporting date
by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent external valuer based on valuation
techniques and assumptions on unit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out
rates and other market conditions, if appropriate. The change in value of the outstanding awards
was charged to the income statement. In the event that the vesting conditions are not met, the
amount previously acerued will be written back accordingly.

Movements in the number of restricted unit award during the vear and the maximom number of
umnits to be issued upon vesting, of restricted unit award are as follows:

Chutwiznding Cirmmind Wembed Canovilied Lapeml  Ouistamding  Maximum
sl during durisg, ilurisg iy, ssnl b dsod
i April ithe [1%) the ke 3 March n vesking
Ibats of grand  Vesting pericd sl srar ywar year yrar iy Aalgiti
mnse LT Flan
i duly i Wi duly By
i 0 B g LI = [ ppo = - LER
14 Wwsndher 14 Fovwanller prdh
FET i Jen Bams pns FrEN.E1] - LFETRTTE L - Tesgah
1 Kool 0
(SR TR T F T FETNE T - - - [EYRTT EUTTN ST AT
= LT Mlan
subral VAR = A - (R} R TR
wpT LT Sl
14 dudy gy ny dudv gory
o g e g FLERTTN - Laanund - [FLE Fii] ELIN LELN¥EY
Wty anry
b o A WIHE AN A - [EET - [ELEELA] LR S Hym.an
i dully med iy BiE
L 3 B ducu “ ETRju - LESS LT T as fue (R B5 20
o duky il
(TR T STy ] . B [ HEhT] [T [Ty AETERE
w7 LT] Ry
QECEH] LENEL T 1158, IHHE (L] [FEL ] [ -0 1Ay gy £, 335033
Aebisial [ RITTNETY [NETRE T R Hawi ) [ERT ] [{LTAE) l.un.l!.ln FEZN )
AchBrbonal e veilnl cea 0o of
PPt i i Eraiing v L iy, g F . . .
ol faoan inisl TOZLIIE [BETRIT [ gng. 7K 450l [ELS ML TE A 2,391 280 FE N T
EOEATET T 3, U0 LLafTt [EESER 1] [CE ] fionanak AT TRI S
Notes:
fil Restricted unit award vesting percentages during the vear ranged from 100% 1o 200%.
o I certain vesting conditions are met.
i) Additional units over 100% of the restricted unit award granted were vested pursuant to

the relevant vesting conditions,
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HENEwEARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 Share capital

Mumber of
shares HEKS
Issned and fully paid:
At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 12,00, 000 12,0000, 000
AL 1 April 2007 50RO 5,00
Issuance on 28 March 2018 6,099,909 6,400,999
At 31 March zo18 L2 (BN, OV 122, CHONED N D
15 Net cash generated from operating activities
2014 208
HE% HE%
Profit before taxation 15,562,082 1,433,795
Interest income (3.482,416) (1,433.:795)
Ineresse in receivables, deposits and prepoyments (249,819) (425,576)
Inerease in amotinis due from fellow subsidiarics (8.066,6560] (131,432,330)
Decrease/(increazge) in amount dee from Link 6,218 (602,531)
Inerease in trade and other payables 14,102,397 123,552,071
Inerease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 714,758 220,158
Inerease in long-term incentive schemes provision 63,415,418 24,118,000
Hong Kong profits tax paid (2.652.336) -
Net cagh generated from operating activities 79,340,646 15,339,702
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HEREEIARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Related party transactions

During the year, the Company underteok the following transactions with related parties at mutually
agreed rates in the normal course of its business:

) 28
HES HEKS
Management fee income (Note &) from:
Link 160,263,290 9,740,517
Fellow subsidiaries B7,095,506 833,880,558

The management fee ineome is subject 1o the terms agreed by the parties involved, which is based
on reimbursement of the actual costs incurred by the Company.

Ultimate holding entity
The directors regard Link as being the ultimate holding entity.
Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements wene approved by the board of directors of the Company on 3 June 2019,

-q1-
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HSBC ) (19.9)
(4.6)
Jones Lang LaSalle
Limited JLL (2.4
(1.5)
(0.85)
« )
« ) (0.027)
(16.2)
Jones Lang LaSalle
Management Services Limited
JLLMS
38.8
The Hongkong and )
Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited HSBC
9.9
HSBC
(52.2)
(12.5)
(55.2)
Aedas (5.3)
Limited
(0.09)
The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies
The Hong Kong (0.011)
Institute of Directors Limited
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited )
)
(0.068)
DBS 0.038
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
DBS
150,000
0.008 0.03
Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle Property Management Services Co., Ltd. JLL
JLL 2019 15
2019 JLL 2,915,407 850,882
2019 15 31 2,064,525 2019
JLL Premier Cleaning
Services Limited 26,900
2018 11 JLL
JLLMS 2016 16 JLL
2016 11 17 2018 31
18.6
ATM
HSBC
12
HSBC
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1101 1102 2021
2.7 0.7
Temple Mall 2018
South G3C 2021
1.4
Tin 2021 11 30
Shing Shopping
Centre L120
3.2
Hang 121A 2019
Seng Bank, Limited
3.5
G202 2019 10 31
HSBC 4.8
Lok Fu Place 2019 21
L201 L206
1.2
Temple Mall 2019 31
North N119
1.0
Hin 2020 12 12
Keng Shopping
Centre B
118 120
HSBC 4.2
2019 14
HSBC Bank Metropolitan
(China) Company Plaza 186
Limited HSBC ( )
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Wakefield (HK) Limited
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HSBC
HSBC 55,201,140
2019CB Link 2019 CB Limited
4,000,000,000 2024 1.60

2019 2019

5936
HSBC JP J.P. Morgan Securities plc
2019
100
HSBC HSBC
HSBC 2019 HSBC
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HSBC 9,600,000
2019 31 HSBC 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(acollective investment scheme authorised under section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong))

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financia Statements

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”) and its subsidiaries (together the “ Group™)
set out on pages 86 to 135, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity and net assets attributable to Unitholders for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of distributions for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by the Hong Kong I nstitute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit relates to the valuation of investment properties.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Vauation of Investment Properties

Refer to notes 3(d), 5(a) and 15 to the consolidated
financia statements

The Group's investment propertiesis the key
component of the net asset value attributable to the
unitholders and underpins the Group'’s result for the
year. The aggregated valuation of investment
properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019 was HK$218,496 million
and the fair value gain of investment properties for the
year was HK$12,269 million, which were significant
components of the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s investment properties portfolio comprises
of retail and office properties, car parks and property
under development in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
The valuations were carried out by athird party valuer
(the “Vauer”). Under the Code on Real Estate
Investment Trusts issued by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission (the “REIT Codge”), the
Valuer shall retire after it has conducted valuations for
three consecutive years, and may only be reappointed
after three years.

The valuation of the Group’s completed investment
propertiesis inherently subjective due to, among other
factors, the individual nature of each property, its
location and the expected future rentals for that
particular property. For properties under development,
factors include estimated devel opment costs and
allowance for developer's risk and profit.

In determining a property’s valuation, the Valuer took
into account property-specific information such as
tenancy agreements, rental income and direct property
expenses. For completed properties, the income
capitalisation approach and discounted cash flow
analysis were primarily used, with cross reference to
direct comparison approach where applicable. The
Valuer applied assumptions for capitalisation rates and
net passing income, which were influenced by the
prevailing market yields and comparable market
transactions, as well as discount rate, to arrive at the
final valuation. For properties under development, the
residual approach was used, whereby the valuation was
derived from the gross development value of the
project upon completion (estimated using a direct
comparison approach) less estimated outstanding
development costs and allowance for developer's risk
and profit.

The existence of significant estimation warrants
specific audit focusin this area.

Experience of Valuer and relevance of their work

We read the Valuer’'s report and understand that the
valuation was prepared in accordance with HKIS
Valuation Standards 2017, the International Valuation
Standards 2017, the RICS Va uation — Global
Standards 2017 and the REIT Code. We assessed the
Valuer's qualifications and expertise and read its terms
of engagement with the Group to determine whether
there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or may have imposed scope limitations
upon their work.

Valuation methodology used by the Valuer

We involved our experts in property valuation to
discuss, assess and evaluate the reasonableness of the
valuation methodol ogies and models used by the
Valuer by comparing against our knowledge in
valuation and the properties industry.

Data used by the Valuer
For completed investment properties we checked, on a
sample basis, the data used by the Valuer to perform
the valuation to appropriate supporting documents,
including:

key terms of |ease agreements,

operating expenditure details; and

rental income schedules.

For property under devel opment, we agreed on a
sample basis that the planned schemes being valued
were consistent with the supporting documents and,
where appropriate, had achieved planning consent.
Where the Valuer used estimated devel opment costs,
we agreed on a sample basis these costs to the approved
budgets, construction contracts and/or other supporting
documents.

Assumptions and estimates used by the Vauer

We attended meetings with the Valuer where we
discussed the valuation approaches and the key
assumptions used. The assumptions used varied across
the portfolio depending on the age, nature and location
of each property but they included estimated
capitalisation rate, net passing income, devel opment
costs and allowance for developer's risk and profit. In
each of these areas, and on a sample basis, we
compared the estimates and assumptions used by the
Valuer against the published industry benchmarks and
comparable market transactions, and our experience in
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There were a number of specific factors affecting the this sector. We performed further work on the
valuations in the year which we considered when properties with assumptions suggesting a possible
making our judgements: outlier versus market data for the relevant property
disposal of the Group’s investment properties sector. Where assumptions were outside the expected
during the year, asreference for recent market range or were otherwise unusual, and/or valuations
transactions; showed unexpected movements, we held further
revitalisation of certain investment properties discussions with the Valuer to understand the rationale
through the Group’ s Asset Enhancement Program; | and obtained additional audit evidence to support the
and explanations received.
the performance of the Group’s investment We considered that the methodologies used in
property portfolio preparing the valuation were appropriate and key
assumptions were supportable in light of available and
comparable market evidence.

391/400



EDINETOO OO
000000000000000000000(E15194)
00O00000000000000onog

Other Information

Link Asset Management Limited (the “Manager” of Link) is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Audit and Risk Management Committee for the Consolidated Financia Statements
The Manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the Manager determinesis necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Manager either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
In addition, the Manager is required to ensure that the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed dated 6 September 2005, as amended by the Twelfth Supplemental
Deeds (the “Trust Deed”), and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.
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As part of an auditin accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgement and maintainprofessional scepticism

throughout the auditWe also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Manager.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we identify
during our audit.
We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Matters Under the Relevant Provisions of the Trust Deed and the Relevant Disclosure Provisions of Appendix C of
the REIT Code

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared, in al material respects, in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Hung Nam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Link Asset Management Limited (the “ Company”) set out on pages 13 to 31, which comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019;
the income statement for the year then ended;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2019,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") relevant to these financial statements issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) and with reference to Practice Note
820 (Revised), “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directorsfor the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with the
applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA relevant to these financia statements and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statementsthat are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as abody, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of userstaken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit)
Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3 June 2019
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